
To accelerate delivery of  key 
infrastructure

Annual Report 
2015/16



VISION
To ensure alternative funding 
for Gauteng’s strategic 
infrastructure projects.



1

Part A: General Information

1. GIFA General Information ..................................... 2

2. Acronyms and Abbreviations  ............................... 2

3. Foreword by the MEC ........................................... 3

4. Report of  the Accounting Officer .......................... 4

5 Statement of  Responsibility and Confirmation of  
Accuracy for the Annual Report ........................... 7

6. Strategic Overview ................................................ 8

6.1 Vision ........................................................... 8
6.2 Mission ........................................................ 8
6.3 Values .......................................................... 8

7. Legislative and Other Mandates ........................... 9

8. Organisational Structure ....................................... 9

Part B: Performance Information

1.  Auditor General’s Report:  
Predetermined Objectives .................................... 11

2. Overview of  GIFA’s Performance .......................... 11

2.1 Service Delivery Environment ...................... 11
2.2 Service Delivery Process-Flow for  

Project Preparation ...................................... 11
2.3 Organisational Environment ........................ 12
2.4 Key policy developments and  

legislative changes ...................................... 12

3. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals ....................... 12

4. Performance Information by Programme .............. 13

4.1 Programme 1: Project Development............ 13
4.2 Programme 2: Structured Finance .............. 16
4.3 Programme 3: Administration ...................... 21

5. Transfer Payments ................................................. 28

6. Conditional Grants ................................................ 28

7. Donor Funds ......................................................... 28

8. Capital Investment ................................................ 28

Part C: Governance

1. Introduction ........................................................... 30

2. Risk Management ................................................. 30

3. Fraud and Corruption............................................ 30

4. Minimising Conflict of  Interest .............................. 30

5. Code of  Conduct .................................................. 30

6. Health Safety and Environmental Issues............... 30

7. Portfolio Committees ............................................. 30

8. Scopa Resolutions ................................................ 30

9. Prior Modifications to Audit Reports ..................... 30

10. Internal Audit and Audit Committees .................... 30

11. Audit Committee Report........................................ 30

Part D: Human Resource Management

1. Introduction ........................................................... 34

2. Overview of  Human Resources ............................ 34

3. Human Resources Oversight Statistics................. 34

Part E: Financial Information

1. Report of  the Auditor General .............................. 54

2. Annual Financial Statements ................................. 55

CONTENTS

GAUTENG INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING AGENCY || ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16



2

2. ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS1. GIFA GENERAL INFORMATION
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 Johannesburg
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 fax number: 
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 email address: 
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 website address : 
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CGIF Corporate Governance of  ICT Framework

COJ City of  Johannesburg

DBSA Development Bank of  Southern Africa

EB Enterprise Building
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GFA Gauteng Funding Agency
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GIFA Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency

GIIC Gauteng Infrastructure Investment Conference

GPG Gauteng Provincial Government

GPT Gauteng Provincial Treasury
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HOD Head of  Department

HR Human Resources

ICT Information and Communication Technology

JSE Johannesburg Stock Exchange

MEC Member of  Executive Council

MTEC Medium Term Expenditure Committee

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

OHSA Occupational Health and Safety Act

PBC Premier’s Budgeting Committee
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PPF Project Preparation Facility

PPP Public Private Partnership

SCM Supply Chain Management

SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SMS Senior Management Service

SITA State Information Technology Agency

SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan

SOPA State of  the Province Address
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TMR Transformation, Modernisation and Re-industrialisation
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The year 2015 was a challenging one for governments in developing countries 
across the globe, particularly the Treasuries. The collapse of  commodity 
prices, credit rating reviews, currency instability, decreasing government 
revenues have all contributed to increased pressure on the fiscus and made 
it ever more difficult to meet rising demands for government services. 

The Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency (hereinafter “GIFA”) has never 
been more important because of  the need to “think out of  the box” and come 
up with innovative solutions for raising alternative funding for accelerating 
the delivery of  infrastructure projects and addressing backlogs. 

The 2015/16 financial year was a particularly good year for GIFA. 
Its administration and operations as a government component were 
promulgated. Six projects were released to the market to attract private 
sector investment. In 2016/17 financial year more projects will be released 
to the market. Financing and implementation of  these projects will bring 
additional capital investment into the economy of  the province, estimated to 

be in the region of  R10 billion. 

I would like to thank the CEO of  GIFA Mr. Oupa Seabi for his leadership of  the 
agency. I therefore present the 2015/16 Annual Report of  GIFA, which details 
the performance of  the GIFA and audited Annual Financial Statements as at 
31st March 2016. 

B Creecy, MEC
Department of  Finance, Gauteng Province

Date: 31 May 2016

3. FOREWORD BY THE MEC
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1. Introduction

 The purpose of  this report is to highlight the 
performance of  the Gauteng Infrastructure 
Financing Agency (GIFA) for the reporting period of  
1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016 in compliance with 
Section 40 of  the Public Finance Management Act, 
Act 1 of  1999 (as amended by Act 29 of  1999) and 
specific financial matters for the period under review. 

 The GIFA was established on 1 July 2015. With the 
establishment, all assets, liabilities and reserves 
of  the disestablished GFA were transferred to the 
GIFA in line with guidelines for “Transfer of  functions 
between entities under common control”.

 The GIFA’s Annual Financial Statements were 
compiled and audited for the 9 months from 1 July 
2015 to 31 March 2016.

 The annual allocation of  R50 million originally 
allocated to GFA was transferred to GIFA.

1.1 Overview of the operations of the GIFA

•	 Significant events of 2015/16 Financial Year

 The transition from Trading Entity to a Provincial 
Government Component 

 The GFA was disestablished in June 2015. The GFA 
books were closed and audited for the three months 
(April – June 2015).

 As set out in the notice, all GIFA’s procurement, 
contracts and payments that were construed 
through the GFA were transferred to the GIFA at the 
end of  30 June 2015 following the disestablishment 
of  GFA. 

 The GIFA is established to accelerate the delivery of  
key infrastructure projects in support of  the Gauteng 
Provincial Government’s (hereinafter “GPG”) 
Ten Pillar programme of  radical Transformation, 
Modernisation and Re-industrialisation (TMR) 
through project development, sourcing and 
structuring of  alternative financing and forming 
strategic partnerships with the private sector. 

 The Annual Performance Plan

 The 2015 State of  the Province Address (SOPA) 
reaffirmed the fifth administration’s programme 
of  transformation, modernisation and re-
industrialisation and it also provided a report-back 
on the progress made in ensuring that programme 
is embraced by most sectors of  the province. The 
SOPA outlined the reconfiguration of  the Gauteng 

City Region’s space and economy along five 
development corridors that have distinct industries 
and different comparative advantages. The GIFA’s 
Annual Performance Plan ensured that its plans 
and priorities are aligned to the imperatives of  the 
Gauteng Provincial Government.

 Achievement of Planned Targets

•	 Achieve	a	clean	audit	report	for	2015/16	
 (The GFA received an unqualified audit report 

with matters of  emphasis for 2014/15 financial 
year)

•	 6	Projects	taken	to	the	market
•	 Transition	from	GFA	to	GIFA
•	 All	vacant	posts	filed,	achieving	a	zero	vacancy	

rate. 

 Projects undertaken in 2015/16 financial year 

 In 2015/16 the GIFA was working on 14 active 
projects. During the 4th Quarter of  the year two more 
projects were added and five new projects were 
sourced from client departments and municipalities 
during the course of  the year. Work on these projects 
was at different stages of  development at end of  
the financial year. The GIFA’s project development 
process has five stages, which are: 

•	 Initiation	Stage
•	 Feasibility	Stage
•	 Market	Release	Stage
•	 Financial	Close	Stage,	and	
•	 Implementation	Stage	

4. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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 Six projects were at financial close in 2015/16. Five 
of  these projects are registered with the National 
Treasury for PPP project life cycle procurement 
process and one will be taken through a traditional 
procurement process. The five projects are 
envisaged to be implemented in 2016/17 financial 
year. A second round of  projects will be released to 
the market during 2016/17. 

 The GIFA will continue sourcing new projects 
through the infrastructure coordinating structures 
of  the Gauteng Provincial Government, led by the 
Planning Division within the Office of  the Premier. 
The Project Preparation Facility (PPF) has been 
established and the credit committee is operational. 
In 2015/16 financial year the credit committee 
approved funding of  10 applications for projects that 
support the GPG’s 10 pillar programme and have a 
high probability of  attracting private funding in their 
own standing. 

2. Overview of the financial results of GFA and GIFA

2.1 Receipts

 The GFA receives an annual transfer payment from 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT), the controlling 
department of  GIFA. This transfer payment is used to 

cover the operating costs of  the GIFA for the year and 
amounts to R50 million. With the disestablishment 
of  GFA and establishment of  GIFA, the balance of  
the portion of  R50 million received was transferred 
to GIFA in July 2015. GIFA will continue to receive 
annual transfer payments from GPT in future years.

 Receipts from transfer payments from GPT thus 
amounts to:

Revenue recognised in GFA 

(Refer to GFA Statement of  
Financial Performance)

R25 million

Revenue recognised in GIFA

(Refer to GIFA Statement of  
Financial Performance)

R25 million

Total Allocation R50 million

 During the latter part of  the financial year, a second 
transfer payment of  R20 million was received 
from Gauteng Treasury to contribute to the Project 
Preparation Facility (PPF). 

 Other income amounts to R5,9 million for GIFA, 
mainly comprising interest on leasehold deposit and 
bank balance, as well as rental sub-lease income. 
Deferred Income of  R554k was transferred to 
revenue in line with the actual payments made from 
the PPF.

 Although the GIFA does not charge project sponsors 
the cost for the feasibility services rendered, the total 
cost of  feasibility paid by GIFA will be capitalised 
and recovered as part of  the project cost in order 
to replenish the PPF only when project successfully 
reaches financial close. 

2.2 Expenditure

 The budgets are prepared on a cash basis and 
presented to the GPT by economic classification 
linked to performance outcome objectives. It covers 
the fiscal period from 01 April 2015 to 30 June 2015 
for GFA and 1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016 for GIFA. 
For purposes of  reporting on expenditure, the total 
expenditure of  GFA and GIFA were used.

 In 2015/16, GFA and GIFA have spent 95% of  its 
R50 million budget. Under expenditure was mainly 
due to delays in the appointment of  dealmakers 
for the GIFA, as well as employee costs relating to 
appointments made later than planned. 

 No unauthorised expenditure or fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure occurred in the year under 
review.

n Initiation Stage
n Feasability Stage
n Market Release Stage
n Financial Close Stage
n Implementation Stage

24%

24%

9%

29%

14%

Project Status: 31 March 2016

Project Status: 31 March 2016

Initiation  
Stage

Feasability  
Stage

Market 
Release Stage

Financial 
Close Stage

Implementation 
Stage

 The diagrams below illustrates the status of  GIFA 
projects at the end of  March 2016.
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 Expenditure per programme is as follows: 

Programme Appropriated Spending

Project Development and Structured Finance 17 340 16 790

Administration (includes: Stakeholder Management, Strategy, Finance and HR) 32 660 30 673

Total 50 000 47 463

d. Procurement and contracting advice and support

 The GIFA will continue to provide advice 
and support to GPG departments and local 
governments with procurement and contracting 
for strategic infrastructure projects referred to 
GIFA. 

e. Monitoring and evaluation

 The GIFA will monitor and evaluate the socio-
economic impact of  implemented projects in line 
with the provincial priorities. 

4. Public Private Partnerships

 No new PPP’s were implemented in the period under 
review, although there are four projects that have 
been registered as PPPs with the National Treasury. 
These projects are envisaged to be implemented in 
the new financial year. 

5. Discontinued activities

 There are no discontinued and new or proposed 
activities to be reported for the 2015/2016 financial 
year. 

6. Supply chain management

 No unsolicited bid proposals were concluded for the 
year under review. 

 No irregular expenditure was identified for 
2015/2016. Irregular expenditure identified in the 
prior financial year as a result of  non-compliance with 
Supply Chain management policy and compliance 
was dealt with. Compliance with SCM policies was a 
focal point for the 2015/2016 financial year to ensure 
that GIFA is compliant in all matters. 

7. Gifts and donations

 No gifts and donations were received in kind from 
related or non-related parties.

2.3 Virements

 Virements were done between programmes in order 
to ensure that cost savings from administrative 
programmes are channelled to the Project 
Development and Structured Finance Units. The 
under expenditure referred to was after taking the 
virements into account.

 For the 2015/16 financial year, a roll-over of  surplus 
funds and retention of  interest received totalling 
R10,6 million was requested. Commitments will be 
funded from this roll-over and the remainder will be 
transferred to the Project Preparation Facility. 

3. Future Plans of the GIFA

 In the new financial year, there are a number of  key 
plans that the GIFA would put in place:

a. Sustainable flow of infrastructure projects pipeline
 The GIFA will continue to ensure that there is 

a sustainable flow of  strategic infrastructure 
projects that the GIFA would develop and issue 
to the market for alternative funding. The GIFA 
will identify these projects through a central point 
for coordination that involves provincial planning 
and budgeting processes. 

b. Project preparation facility (PPF)

 The credit committee for the Project Preparation 
Facility will continue to operate fully according 
to policies and procedures ensuring proper 
governance thereof. The PPF will be utilised to 
fund project development for projects that have 
been sourced from provincial departments, 
agencies and municipalities.

c. Mobilise potential investors

 The GIFA plans to mobilise potential investors 
through various activities such as investor 
roadshows to fund bankable infrastructure 
projects. Agreements that have been concluded 
with the Development Bank of  Southern Africa 
(DBSA) and the Banking Association of  South 
Africa (BASA) will continue to assist in achieving 
this goal.

4. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER (CONTINUED)
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8. Exemptions and deviations received from the 
National Treasury

 The GIFA as a government component uses 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 
as its reporting framework. 

9. Events after the reporting date

 There were no events after the reporting date that 
would have an impact on the reporting as at 31 
March 2016. 

10. Acknowledgements

 I wish to express special appreciation to the MEC, 
Ms. Barbara Creecy, for her guidance and support. I 
would also like to thank the GIFA staff  for their tireless 
contributions in ensuring that the GIFA achieves its 
set targets and in striving to become a centre of  
excellence in project development and finance. 

11. Conclusion

 There were no challenges relating to the transition 
from GFA to GIFA and working environment has 
been stable over the past year. All the critical posts 
have been approved and filled to ensure that skills 
and capacity is available to function optimally in 
delivering its mandate. 

12. Approval and sign off

 The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 
56 to 82 have been approved by the Accounting 
Officer.

 Mr P.H Seabi
 Accounting officer
 Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency

 Date: 31 May 2016

5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR 
THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of  my knowledge and belief, I confirm the 
following: 

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the 
annual report are consistent. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from 
any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with 
the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National 
Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been 
prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised 
Accounting Principles (GRAP) and the relevant frameworks 
and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation 
of  the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements 
made in this information. 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, 
and implementing a system of  internal control that has 
been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the 
integrity and reliability of  the performance information, the 
human resources information and the Annual Financial 
Statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the 
operations, the performance information, the human 
resources information and the financial affairs of  the 
department for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully

Mr P.H Seabi
Accounting Officer
Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency

Date: 31 May 2016
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

6.1 Vision 

 To ensure alternative funding for Gauteng’s strategic 
infrastructure projects.

6.2 Mission

•	 To	set	up	a	central	point	of 	coordination	 for	all	
strategic infrastructure projects in the province;

•	 To	 identify	 bankable	 infrastructure	 projects	
through project filtration criteria and feasibility 
studies;

•	 To	explore	various	funding	mix	through	research	
on local and international best practices in 
project finance;

•	 To	 mobilise	 potential	 investors	 to	 support	
identified and approved infrastructure projects 
that are not funded through own Revenue Fund; 
and

•	 To	 monitor	 the	 implementation	 of 	 infrastructure	
projects through successful contractual 
relationships between GPG departments and 
investors.

6.3 Values

 The values and principles that underpin the Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury are predicated on the principles 

of  Batho Pele and are:

Value What it means

Value Employees

We attract, motivate and retain talented people through career path, developing skills and 
empowering our employees. We also help them perform at consistently high levels by 
encouraging their professional and personal development. We reward their performance, 
treat them fairly, equally and we aim to be an employer of  choice

Honesty and 
Integrity

We will represent information transparently and truthfully, will honour our commitments; 
firmly adhere to a code of  moral and ethical principles and will display professionalism in 
the workplace by being non-biased and objective

Service Excellence

We place high value on our stakeholders and strive to meet their expectations and 
requirements by offering consistently good customer service, in both roles of  support 
and/or oversight

Teamwork

We align, collaborate and communicate within and across the business units to meet the 

needs of  our customers/stakeholders. We are committed to information and knowledge 

sharing

Respect and Dignity
We will treat others with sensitivity, respect and have consideration for their uniqueness 

and personality differences and act within the law

Accountability
We take full responsibility and ownership of  our actions, by not passing the buck. We will 

have a positive, professional and productive approach to our work
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7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

•	 The	GIFA	 is	established	as	a	government	component	 in	 terms	of 	section	7(5)(d)	of 	 the	Public	Service	Act,	1994	
following the President’s Proclamation No. 69 of  2014 (Government Gazette No. 38088), within the portfolio of  the MEC 
responsible for Finance in the Province with effect from 17 October 2014;

•	 The	Premier	of 	Gauteng	Province	proclaimed	the	Administration	and	Operations	of 	the	GIFA	in	the	General	Notice	
that was published on 13 July 2015 in the Provincial Gazette. PART 2 of  the General Notice outlines the objectives, 
functions and powers of  GIFA.

8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Member of the 
Executive Council 

(MEC)

Chief Executive 
Officer

Organisational 
Strategy,  

Monitoring & 
Evaluation

Project 
Development 

Structured  
Finance

Corporate  
Services
(CFO)

Communication, 
Marketing & 
Stakeholder 
Management

Internal Audit 
(Governance & 

Compliance)
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B. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: 
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

 The AGSA currently performs certain audit 
procedures on the performance information to 
provide reasonable assurance in the form of  an 
audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the 
performance against predetermined objectives is 
included in the report to management, with material 
findings being reported under the Predetermined 
Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements section of  the auditor’s 
report.

 Refer to page 54 of  the Report of  the Auditor 
General, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. OVERVIEW OF GIFA PERFORMANCE

2.1 Service Delivery Environment

 The type of  service offered by the GIFA to its clients 
is project development support and facilitation 
of  funding opportunities to finance infrastructure 
projects off  budget or off-balance sheet of  the 
project owners. The primary clients or beneficiaries 
of  GIFA’s services are GPG departments and their 
agencies and municipalities. Over the past years the 
clients have been:

•	 Department	of 	Economic	Development
•	 Department	of 	Infrastructure	Development
•	 Department	of 	Roads	and	Transport
•	 Department	of 	Sports,	Recreation,	Arts	&	Culture
•	 Department	of 	Education
•	 Gauteng	Growth	and	Development	Agency
•	 West	Rand	District	Municipality
•	 Sedibeng	District	Municipality

 The GIFA supports these client institutions in 
preparing projects to a point where they can be 
funded and implemented. For GIFA to deliver an 
efficient and effective service to its clients it has 
developed a Service Delivery Model for project 
preparation. The service delivery model explains 
process flow or steps of  project preparation.

2.2 Service Delivery Process-flow for Project 
Preparation 

Project  
Preparation Stages Activities

1. Project Definition •	 Defining	the	objectives	and	
scope of  the project.

2. Pre-feasibility •	 Development	of 	project	
concept into a business 
plan containing high level 
estimates of  key project 
parameters.

3. Full Project 
Feasibility

•	 Improving	the	accuracy	of 	
all project parameters by 
undertaking comprehensive 
technical studies.

4. Project 
Structuring 

•	 Creation	of 	appropriate	
technical and commercial 
structures for a project 
to attract the right mix of  
financing.

5. Transaction •	 Tangible	agreements	to	
procure the services of  
implementers to deliver 
agreed goods.

6. Post-
implementation

•	 Ensure	that	all	parties	to	
the project agreement 
understand their respective 
obligations.

2.3 Organisational Environment 

 The GIFA has now established a sustainable 
pipeline of  projects that have been sourced from 
provincial departments and municipalities. The 
mechanisms have been created through the 
Gauteng Infrastructure Coordinating Council (GICC) 
to ensure that there is a central point of  coordination 
for infrastructure projects in the province and GIFA 
has always been involved in the GICC processes to 
identify or source strategic infrastructure projects 
that are suitable for alternative funding. In 2015/16 
financial year GIFA has strengthened its relationship 
with the Gauteng Planning Division which is the 
coordinator of  the GICC processes. This has 
resulted in GIFA sourcing a sustainable pipeline of  

projects for feasibility studies. 
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2.3 Organisational Environment (continued)

 The GIFA has made considerable efforts to improve 
stakeholder relations within government and outside. 
A number of  events were undertaken by the GIFA to 
build relations that would ensure that GIFA’s offering 
and value is promoted. Some of  the activities 
conducted by GIFA are:

•	 The Gauteng Infrastructure Investment 
Conference. The 2015 inaugural conference 
provided a good platform to engage with 
stakeholders in the infrastructure development 
and financial sectors. The success of  the 2015 
conference has provided a good case to make it 
an annual event;

•	 The roadshows to municipalities. The GIFA 
engaged one-on-one with municipalities across 
Gauteng to promote GIFA’s value proposition and 
identify strategic infrastructure projects; 

•	 Investor roadshows. The GIFA has started to 
engage possible funding partners through 
investor roadshows and engagements and this will 
become an ongoing series of  engagements. Thus 
far the GIFA has engaged strategic organisations 
such as BASA and ASISA and has initiated 
collaborations with DFIs. These relationships will 
be strengthened and collaborations concluded in 
2016/17 financial years.

 The GIFA has made significant progress in preparing 
projects for market release to secure alternative 
funding. A number of  projects were pitched to the 
potential investors at the Gauteng Infrastructure 
Investment Conference and later request for 
qualification and request for interest were issued 
to the market. Opening of  the GIFA projects to the 
market would test the appetite for funding through 
alternative means. Thus far the Gauteng Provincial 
Government has made a headway in building 
investor confidence through various activities 
such as the Gauteng Infrastructure Investment 
Conference and meeting with the captains of  the 
JSE listed companies. Such activities will be regular 
occurrence whereby the GIFA plans to put out a 
basket of  projects to the market yearly. 

2.4 Key policy developments and legislative changes

 There were no major changes to relevant policies or 
legislation that may have affected the operations of  
the GIFA during the period under review.

3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED 
GOALS

 The following are the GIFA’s strategic goals and 
significant achievements with regard to outcome(s):

Strategic Goals Achievements 

To ensure a sustainable pipeline of  strategic 
infrastructure projects that are catalysts for socio-
economic development through a coordinated 
process in the province

•	 Projects	 were	 sourced	 through	 the	 coordinated	 process	 to	
ensure that GIFA’s project pipeline remains sustainable.

To ensure that GPG develops infrastructure projects 
to bankable proposals that will attract funding from 
various sources

•	 Feasibility	studies	were	completed.

•	 RFQs	and	RFIs	were	issued.

To become a centre of  excellence that applies various 
funding models for infrastructure financing solutions

•	 Financial	models	were	developed	and	analysed.

To establish a network of  investor partnerships and 
build investor confidence in GCR initiated projects

•	 Investor	 roadshows	 were	 organised	 to	 promote	 the	 GIFA’s	
projects and offerings.

•	 Agreements	were	concluded	with	the	DBSA,	BASA	and	ASISA	
as a way of  establishing partnerships and to build investor 
confidence.

•	 Stakeholder	engagements	were	organised	in	municipalities.

To ensure efficient and economic contracting for 
infrastructure projects in a manner that GCR realises 
the socio-economic benefits

•	 A	 number	 of 	 projects	 were	 supported	 with	 PPP	 registering	
and this will be followed by financial close and contracting.
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4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY 
PROGRAMME

4.1 Programme 1: Project Development 

•	 Purpose:

 The purpose of  this business unit is to source 
infrastructure projects from sector departments, 
municipalities and provincial agencies through 
processes and structures such as GICC, MTEC, 
PBC and engagements with accounting officers. 
The business unit is responsible for developing the 
projects into comprehensive business plans that 
are ready for funding and implementation. The key 
activities of  the business unit involve identification 
of  appropriate projects, pre-feasibility and feasibility 
assessments, risk assessments, development of  
business plans, commercial and operational due 
diligence. 

•	 List	 the	 strategic	 objectives	 for	 the	 financial	
year under review:

- To develop a framework for Central Point 
for coordination of  infrastructure projects to 
promote better planning and funding synergy 
for strategic infrastructure projects across all 
spheres government in the province 

- To complete feasibility studies to determine 
viability and the mix of  funding required for 
infrastructure projects

- To develop a Project Filtration Criteria to 
identify strategic infrastructure projects 
that will have greater impact on provincial 
priorities.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objectives: 

Programme Name: Project Development

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation from 
planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment  
on Deviations

To develop a framework for 
central point for coordination 
of  infrastructure projects to 
promote better planning and 
funding synergy for strategic 
infrastructure projects across 
all spheres government in the 
province 

Review the 
framework for 
central point for 
coordination of  
infrastructure 
projects 

The framework for central point for 
coordination of  infrastructure projects 
was reviewed

None None

Source 5 
projects for 
feasibility 
studies through 
central point of  
coordination of  
infrastructure 
projects 
processes 

5 projects were sourced for feasibility 
studies through central point of  
coordination of  infrastructure projects 
processes:

a) Lindley Waste Water Treatment 
Plant

b) Constitutional Hill Precinct 
Development

c) Gauteng Planning House
d) Tshwane Agro-processing Hub
e) Sedibeng Agro-processing Hub

None None
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Programme Name: Project Development

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation from 
planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment  
on Deviations

To complete feasibility studies 
to determine viability and the 
mix of  funding required for 
infrastructure projects

Complete 5 
project feasibility 
studies

5 project feasibility studies were 
completed:

a) West Rand Logistics Hub
b) Tri-generation Plants project
c) Rooftop Solar Panels
d) COJ Alternative Waste Treatment 

Technology
e) Suikerbosrand Nature Reserve

None None

Complete 5 
Project Appraisal 
Reports of  
projects ready 
for financial 
structuring

6 Project Appraisal Reports were 
completed:

a) Maropeng Hotel Project
b) Suikerbosrand Nature Reserve
c) Tri-generation Plant
d) Rooftop Solar Panels 
e) West Rand Logistics Hub
f) COJ Alternative Waste Treatment 

Technology

None None

To develop a Project Filtration 
Criteria to identify strategic 
infrastructure projects that 
will have greater impact on 
provincial priorities

Review the 
Project Filtration 
Criteria for 
identifying 
strategic 
infrastructure 
projects

Project Filtration Criteria for identifying 
strategic infrastructure projects was 
reviewed 

None None

Strategic Objectives: (continued)
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Performance Indicators: 

Programme Name: Project Development

Performance Indicator
Planned Target

2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation from 
planned target 

to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment  
on Deviations

Effective framework for 
central point for coordination 
of  infrastructure projects

Review the 
framework for 
central point for 
coordination of  
infrastructure 
projects 

The framework for central point for 
coordination of  infrastructure projects 
was reviewed

None None

Number of  projects sourced 
through central point of  
coordination of  infrastructure 
projects processes

Source 5 projects 
for feasibility 
studies through 
central point of  
coordination of  
infrastructure 
projects 
processes 

5 projects were sourced for feasibility 
studies through central point of  
coordination of  infrastructure projects 
processes:

a) Lindley Waste Water Treatment 
Plant 

b) Constitutional Hill Precinct 
Development

c) Gauteng Planning House 
d) Tshwane Agro-processing Hub
e) Sedibeng Agro-processing Hub 

None None

Number of  feasibility studies 
completed

Complete 5 
project feasibility 
studies 

5 project feasibility studies were 
completed:

a) West Rand Logistics Hub
b) Tri-generation Plants project
c) Rooftop Solar Panels
d) COJ Alternative Waste Treatment 

Technology
e) Suikerbosrand Nature Reserve

None None

Number of  Project Appraisal 
Reports (PAR) completed

Complete 5 
Project Appraisal 
Reports of  
projects ready 
for financial 
structuring

6 Project Appraisal Reports were 
completed:

a) Maropeng Hotel Project
b) Suikerbosrand Nature Reserve
c) Tri-generation Plant 
d) Rooftop Solar Panels 
e) West Rand Logistics Hub
f) COJ Alternative Waste Treatment 

Technology

None None

Effective Project Filtration 
Criteria for identifying 
strategic infrastructure 
projects

Review the 
Project Filtration 
Criteria for 
identifying 
strategic 
infrastructure 
projects 

Project Filtration Criteria for identifying 
strategic infrastructure projects was 
reviewed

None None
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4.2 Programme 2: Structured Finance

•	 Purpose:

 The purpose of  this programme is to structure 
finance for developed infrastructure projects and 
engage potential private and public funders with 
the aim of  raising finance for the projects. The key 
activities in this programme involve ensuring that the 
project is bankable.

•	 List	 the	 strategic	 objectives	 for	 the	 financial	
year under review

- To analyse and structure projects to 
bankability and funding

- To fund projects through alternative sources 
of  funding

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objectives: 

Programme Name: Structured Finance

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016
Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

To analyse and 
structure projects 
to bankability and 
funding 

Analyse 
financial models 
of  3 completed 
projects 
feasibilities

5 financial models of  
completed projects 
feasibilities were 
analysed:

a) Sedibeng 
Alternative 
Waste Treatment 
Technology 

b) COJ Alternative 
Waste Treatment 
Technology 

c) Jewellery 
Manufacturing 
Precinct

d) Tri-generation Plant
e) Kopanong Precinct 

Project

Conclude 
Memorandum 
of  Interest with 
private investors 
on 2 projects

a) Collaboration 
between GIFA and 
BASA and ASISA

The collaboration and co-
operation between GIFA and 
BASA and ASISA to leverage 
access to finance through 
targeted infrastructure 
projects and innovative 
financing models

The collaboration and 
co-operation is based 
on the Memorandum 
of  Understanding 
between BASA and 
the Gauteng Provincial 
Government

b) A non-disclosure 
Agreement (NDA) 
was signed 
between GIFA and 
the DBSA

The agreement between 
the GIFA and DBSA is 
structured in the form of  a 
Memorandum of  Interest

The NDA will provide 
better benefits during 
discussions on 
proposed transactions 
that the DBSA could 
be interested in

- To create a repository for data and relevant 
information that could be utilised for project 
financing solutions

- To develop an Investment Memorandum to 
profile GPG’s strategic projects and attract 
investor interest

- To develop Funder Engagement Plan and 
organise Investor Roadshows to promote 
bankable infrastructure projects

- To provide advice and support to GPG 
department with procurement and contracting 
for strategic infrastructure projects

- To monitor project development and 
implementation and evaluate the socio-
economic impact of  the projects in line with 
the provincial priorities.
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Programme Name: Structured Finance

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016
Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

To fund projects 
through alternative 
sources of 
funding 

Fund 2 projects 
through 
alternative 
sources of  
funding  

a) 5 projects are 
registered as PPPs 
and are undergoing 
procurement 
processes 

The 5 projects have received 
various National Treasury 
Approvals:

(a) Kopanong Precinct: 
TAII(a)

(b) Tshwane Innovation Hub 
(EB 2): TAII(a)

(c) Tshwane Innovation Hub 
(EB 3):TAll(a)

(d) Trigen Plant: TAII(a)
(e) Rooftop Solar Panels: TA 

I and TAII(a)

All these projects 
will be implemented 
before the end of  the 
2016/17 financial year

b) 1 project is 
undergoing 
a traditional 
procurement 
process

The dealmaker for Jewellery 
Manufacturing Precinct has 
been appointed and will 
ensure that the project is 
implemented before the end 
of  the current financial year

To create a repository 
for data and relevant 
information that could 
be utilised for project 
financing solutions

Maintain 
and update 
repository 
of  potential 
investors/ 
funders

The repository of  
potential investors/ 
funders was maintained 
and updated

None None

To develop an 
Investment 
Memorandum to 
profile GPG’s strategic 
projects and attract 
investor interest

Update the 
Investment 
Memorandum 
with new 
bankable 
projects

The Investment 
Memorandum was 
updated with new 
bankable projects

None None

To develop Funder 
Engagement Plan 
and organise Investor 
Roadshows to 
promote bankable 
infrastructure 
projects 

Review and 
update Funder 
Engagement 
Plan

The Funder 
Engagement Plan was 
reviewed and updated

None None

Organise 
2 Investor 
Roadshows 

2 Investor Roadshows 
were organised at:

a) The Gauteng 
Infrastructure 
Investment 
Conference 

b) Annual African 
Capital Markets 
Conference

None None

Strategic Objectives: (continued)
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Programme Name: Structured Finance

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016
Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

To provide advice 
and support to 
GPG departments 
with procurement 
and contracting for 
strategic infrastructure 
projects

Support 5 
departmental/ 
municipality 
projects with 
procurement 
and contracting 
of  bankable 
projects

Supported 6 
departmental and 
municipal projects with 
procurement process:

a) Jewellery 
Manufacturing 
Precinct

b) Tshwane Innovation 
Hub	(EB2&3)

c) Rooftop Solar Panel 
Project 

d) Tri-generation Plant 
e) Kopanong Precinct 

Project
f) Suikerbosrand 

Nature Reserve 
Project

None None

To monitor project 
development and 
implementation and 
evaluate the socio-
economic impact of 
the projects in line 
with the provincial 
priorities

Produce 4 
Monitoring 
and evaluation 
reports on 
projects

4 monitoring and 
evaluation reports were 
produced

None None

Strategic Objectives: (continued)
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Performance Indicators: 

Programme Name: Structured Finance

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target
2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

Number of 
financial 
models 
analysed

Analyse financial 
models of  3 
completed 
projects 
feasibilities

5 financial models of  completed 
projects feasibilities were 
analysed:

a) Sedibeng Alternative Waste 
Treatment Technology 

b) COJ Alternative Waste 
Treatment Technology 

c) Jewellery Manufacturing 
Precinct

d) Tri-generation Plant
e) Kopanong Precinct Project

None None

Number of 
Memorandums 
of Interest 
concluded 
with private 
investors

Conclude 
Memorandum 
of  Interest with 
private investors 
on 2 projects

Collaboration between GIFA and 
BASA and ASISA

The collaboration and 
co-operation between 
GIFA and BASA and 
ASISA to leverage 
access to finance 
through targeted 
infrastructure projects 
and innovative financing 
models

The collaboration and 
co-operation is based 
on the Memorandum 
of  Understanding 
between BASA and 
the Gauteng Provincial 
Government

A Non-disclosure Agreement 
(NDA) was signed between GIFA 
and the DBSA

The agreement between 
the GIFA and DBSA is 
structured in the form 
of  a Memorandum of  
Interest

The NDA will provide 
better benefits during 
discussions on 
proposed transactions 
that the DBSA could 
be interested in 

Number of 
projects 
funded through 
alternative 
sources of 
funding

Fund 2 projects 
through 
alternative 
sources of  
funding

5 projects are registered as PPPs 
and are undergoing procurement 
processes

The 5 projects have 
received various National 
Treasury Approvals:
a) Kopanong Precinct: 

TAII(a)
b) Tshwane Innovation 

Hub (EB 2): TAII(a)
c) Tshwane Innovation 

Hub (EB 3): TAII(a)
d) Trigen Plant: TAII(a)
e) Rooftop Solar Panels: 

TA I and TAII(a)

All these projects 
will be implemented 
before the end of  the 
2016/17 financial year

1 project is undergoing a 
traditional procurement process

The dealmaker for 
Jewellery Manufacturing 
Precinct has been 
appointed and will 
ensure that the project 
is implemented before 
the end of  the current 
financial year
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Programme Name: Structured Finance

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target
2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

Effective 
repository 
for data and 
relevant 
information 
that could 
be utilised 
for project 
financing 
solutions

Maintain and 
update repository 
of  potential 
investors/ funders

The repository of  potential 
investors/ funders was maintained 
and updated

None None

Effective 
Investment 
Memorandum

Update the 
Investment 
Memorandum 
with new 
bankable projects

The Investment Memorandum 
was updated with new bankable 
projects

None None

Effective 
Funder 
Engagement 
Plan

Review and 
update Funder 
Engagement Plan

The Funder Engagement Plan 
was reviewed and updated

None None

Number 
of  Investor 
Roadshows 
organised

Organise 
2 Investor 
Roadshows

2 Investor Roadshows were 
organised at:

a) The Gauteng Infrastructure 
Investment Conference (GIIC) 

b) Annual African Capital 
Markets Conference in Cape 
Town

None None

Number of  
departmental/ 
municipality 
projects 
supported on 
procurement 
and contracting

Support 5 
departmental/ 
municipality 
projects with 
procurement and 
contracting of  
bankable projects 

Supported 6 departmental 
and municipal projects with 
procurement process:

a) Jewellery Manufacturing 
Precinct

b) Tshwane Innovation Hub
c) Rooftop Solar Panel Project 
d) Tri-generation Plant 
e) Kopanong Precinct Project
f) Suikerbosrand Nature Reserve 

Project

None None

Number of  
monitoring 
and evaluation 
reports 
produced

Produce 4 
Monitoring and 
evaluation reports 
on projects 

4 monitoring and evaluation 
reports were produced 

None None

Performance Indicators: (continued)
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Programme 1 and 2 Expenditure

Sub-Programme Name

2015/2016

Appropriated Spending

R’000 R’000

Project Development and Structured Finance 17 340 16 790

4.3 Programme 3: Administration

•	 Purpose:

 The purpose of  the Programme is to provide 
leadership, strategic management, communications 
and stakeholder management and administrative 
support to the GIFA. The key business unit activities 
involve developing the strategic plan of  the GIFA and 
monitoring its implementation, implementation of  the 
communication strategy and ensuring strengthened 
relations with key stakeholders, building the capacity 
of  GIFA and ensuring that GIFA becomes a centre 
of  excellence through research and knowledge 
management. 

•	 Sub-programmes:

- Office of  the Head of  the GIFA
- Marketing, Communications and Stakeholder 

Engagement
- Financial Management
- Information and Communication Technology
- Facilities Management
- Human Resource Management

•	 List	 the	 strategic	 objectives	 for	 the	 financial	
year under review

- To provide sound strategic direction and 
leadership to the GFA through credible 
Strategic Plans, Annual Performance Plans and 
reliable management of  GFA’s performance

- To support the GIFA through effective 
communications, marketing and stakeholder 
relations management

- To ensure good governance and a sound 
control environment through relevant finance 
policies, in-year monitoring, and risk and 
security management

- To ensure ICT governance within the GIFA in 
line with the Corporate Governance of  ICT 
Framework (CGIF)

- To ensure the continuity of  GIFA’s business in 
the event of  disaster by constantly testing the 
credibility of  established business continuity 
plans 

- To efficiently manage GIFA facilities in 
compliance with PMFA and Occupational 
Health	&	Safety	Act	(OHSA)

- To establish an efficient and developmental 
human resources management for the GIFA.
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Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objectives: 

Programme Name: Administration

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment  
on Deviations

To provide sound 
strategic direction 
and leadership to 
the GFA through 
credible Strategic 
Plans, Annual 
Performance 
Plans and reliable 
management of  
GFA’s performance

Develop 2016/17 Annual 
Performance Plan

The 2016/17 Annual Performance Plan 
was developed and submitted to GPT

None None

Review the Performance 
Information Management 
Framework

Performance Information Management 
Framework was reviewed

None None

Submit 4 Quarterly 
Performance Reports 
to GPT and 1 Annual 
Performance Report

4 Quarterly Performance Reports and 
1 Annual Performance Report were 
submitted within the prescribed times

None None

To support the 
GIFA through 
effective 
communications, 
marketing and 
stakeholder 
relations 
management

Undertake 5 key 
communications and 
marketing activities in 
line with the Integrated 
Marketing and 
Communications Strategy 
of  GIFA

5 key communications and marketing 
activities were undertaken in line 
with the Integrated Marketing and 
Communications Strategy of  GIFA. 
Activities undertaken: 

a) Gauteng infrastructure Investment 
Conference

b) Annual African Capital Markets 
Conference 

c) West Rand District/ GIFA 
Infrastructure Development 
Workshop

d) Engagements with the DBSA
e) Engagements with BASA

None None

To support the 
GIFA through 
effective 
communications, 
marketing and 
stakeholder 
relations 
management

Organise 7 key stakeholder 
relations activities/ events 
in line with the Stakeholder 
Relations Management Plan

7 key stakeholder relations activities 
which entailed municipal visits as key 
stakeholders were organised in line with 
the Stakeholder Relations Management 
Plan. Municipalities visited: 
a) Ekurhuleni Metro
b) Tshwane Metro
c) Westonaria Local Municipality
d) Sedibeng Local Municipality
e) Lesedi Local Municipality
f) Emfuleni Local Municipality
g) Mogale Local Municipality

None None
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Programme Name: Administration

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment  
on Deviations

To ensure good 
governance and 
a sound control 
environment 
through relevant 
finance policies, 
in-year monitoring, 
risk and security 
management

Achieve a clean audit report Achieved unqualified audit report with 
matters for 2014/15 financial year

The Auditor 
General (AG) 
raised a matter 
of  irregular 
expenditure

An action 
plan to 
address 
AG’s 
findings was 
developed 
and all the 
findings 
were 
addressed

Compile and submit 3 
Quarterly and 1 Annual 
Financial Statements to 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury

3 Quarterly Financial Statements were 
approved and submitted to Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury within the prescribed 
times

The 4th Quarter Financial Statement 
was submitted as part of  the 2015/16 
Annual Financial Statement

None None

Review the GIFA finance 
policies, business processes, 
procedures and systems

The GIFA finance policies, business 
processes, procedures and systems 
were reviewed

None None

Develop GIFA’s Risk 
Management Strategy

The GIFA’s Risk Management Strategy 
was developed

None None

Ensure all contracts 
concluded with GIFA are 
managed in terms of  
deliverables vs payments  

All contracts concluded with GIFA are 
managed in terms of  deliverables vs 
payments

None None

Produce 3 quarterly reports 
on the management and 
operations of the Project 
Preparation Facility ensuring 
compliance to the PFMA

3 quarterly reports on the management 
and operations of  the Project 
Preparation Facility were produced

None None

To ensure ICT 
governance within 
the GIFA in line 
with the Corporate 
Governance of  ICT 
Framework (CGIF)

Develop 6 ICT Policies for 
GIFA

6 ICT Policies for GIFA were developed None None

To ensure the 
continuity of  
GIFA’s business 
in the event 
of  disaster by 
constantly testing 
the credibility 
of  established 
business continuity 
plans 

Develop the Business 
Continuity and Disaster 
Recovery Plan

Business Continuity and Disaster 
Recovery Plan was developed

None None

Strategic Objectives: (continued)
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Programme Name: Administration

Strategic Objectives
Planned Target

2015/2016 Actual Achievement 2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment  
on Deviations

To efficiently 
manage GIFA 
facilities in 
compliance 
with PMFA and 
Occupational 
Health	&	Safety	Act	
(OHSA)

Produce 4 quarterly reports 
on facilities management 
ensuring compliance to 
PFMA and OHSA

4 quarterly reports on facilities 
management ensuring compliance to 
PFMA and OHSA were produced

None None

To establish an 
efficient and 
developmental 
human resources 
management for 
the GIFA

Develop the GIFA HR Plan The HR Plan was developed None None

Review and update HR 
Policies for GIFA

HR Policies for GIFA were reviewed None None

Develop and implement HR 
Training

Developed and implemented the HR 
Training

None None

Complete annual 
performance assessments 
for all staff

All level 1 – 12 quarterly assessments 
were completed 

None None

Complete annual 
performance assessments 
for all staff

Performance assessments for SMS staff  
were completed

None None

Strategic Objectives: (continued)

Programme Name: Administration

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

Credible Strategic 
and Annual 
Performance Plans 
that are aligned to the 
Gauteng Provincial 
Government’s 
priorities

Develop 
2016/17 Annual 
Performance Plan

The 2016/17 Annual 
Performance Plan was 
developed and submitted 
to GPT

None None

Credible and 
reliable Performance 
Information 
Management 
Framework

Review the 
Performance 
Information 
Management 
Framework

Performance Information 
Management Framework 
was reviewed

None None

Number of  
performance reports 
submitted to GPT

Submit 4 
Quarterly 
Performance 
Reports to GPT 
and 1 Annual 
Performance 
Report

4 Quarterly Performance 
Reports and 1 Annual 
Performance Report 
were submitted within the 
prescribed times

None None

Performance Indicators:
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Performance Indicators: (continued)

Programme Name: Administration

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

Number of  key 
communications and 
marketing activities 
undertaken in line 
with the Integrated 
Marketing and 
Communications 
Strategy of  GIFA

Undertake 5 key 
communications 
and marketing 
activities in 
line with the 
Integrated 
Marketing and 
Communications 
Strategy of  GIFA

5 key communications and 
marketing activities were 
undertaken in line with 
the Integrated Marketing 
and Communications 
Strategy of  GIFA. Activities 
undertaken: 
a) Gauteng infrastructure 

Investment Conference
b) Annual African Capital 

Markets Conference 
c) West Rand District/ 

GIFA Infrastructure 
Development Workshop

d) Engagements with the 
DBSA

e) Engagements with 
BASA

None None

Number of  key 
stakeholder 
relations activities 
or events organised 
in line with the 
Stakeholder Relations 
Management Plan

Organise 7 key 
stakeholder 
relations activities/ 
events in line with 
the Stakeholder 
Relations 
Management Plan

7 key stakeholder relations 
activities which entailed 
municipal visits as key 
stakeholders were 
organised in line with the 
Stakeholder Relations 
Management Plan. 
Municipalities visited: 
a) Ekurhuleni Metro
b) Tshwane Metro
c) Westonaria Local 

Municipality
d) Sedibeng Local 

Municipality
e) Lesedi Local 

Municipality
f) Emfuleni Local 

Municipality
g) Mogale Local 

Municipality

None None

Achieve a clean audit 
report

Achieve a clean 
audit report

Achieved unqualified audit 
report with matters for 
2014/15 financial year 

The Auditor General (AG) 
raised a matter of  irregular 
expenditure

An action plan 
to address AG’s 
findings was 
developed and all 
the findings were 
addressed
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Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Performance Indicators: 

Programme Name: Administration

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

Number of  credible 
and accurate quarterly 
and Annual Financial 
Statements submitted 
within the prescribed 
times

Compile and 
submit 3 
Quarterly and 1 
Annual Financial 
Statements 
to Gauteng 
Provincial 
Treasury

3 Quarterly Financial 
Statements were approved 
and submitted to Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury within 
the prescribed times

The 4th Quarter Financial 
Statement was submitted as 
part of  the 2015/16 Annual 
Financial Statement

None None

Credible and effective 
finance policies, 
business process, 
procedures and 
systems

Review the 
GIFA finance 
policies, business 
processes, 
procedures and 
systems

The GIFA finance policies, 
business processes, 
procedures and systems 
were reviewed

None None

Credible and Reliable 
and Risk Management 
strategies

Develop GIFA’s 
Risk Management 
Strategy

The GIFA’s Risk 
Management Strategy was 
developed

None None

Effective and efficient 
contract management

Ensure all 
contracts 
concluded 
with GIFA are 
managed in terms 
of  deliverables vs 
payments

All contracts concluded 
with GIFA are managed in 
terms of  deliverables vs 
payments

None None

Number of  quarterly 
reports produced 
on the effective and 
efficient management 
and operations of  the 
Project Preparation 
Facility ensuring 
compliance to the 
PFMA 

Produce 3 
quarterly 
reports on the 
management 
and operations 
of  the Project 
Preparation 
Facility ensuring 
compliance to the 
PFMA

3 quarterly reports on 
the management and 
operations of  the Project 
Preparation Facility were 
produced

None None

Number of  ICT 
policies developed

Develop 6 ICT 
Policies for GIFA

6 ICT Policies for GIFA were 
developed

None None

Efficient management 
of  GIFA facilities in 
compliance with 
relevant legislation 
and policies such as 
the PFMA and OHSA

Develop the 
Business 
Continuity and 
Disaster Recovery 
Plan

Business Continuity and 
Disaster Recovery Plan was 
developed

None None
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Programme Name: Administration

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual Achievement 
2015/2016

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016
Comment  

on Deviations

To efficiently manage 
GIFA facilities 
in compliance 
with PMFA and 
Occupational Health 
&	Safety	Act	(OHSA)

Produce 4 
quarterly reports 
on facilities 
management 
ensuring 
compliance to 
PFMA and OHSA

4 quarterly reports on 
facilities management 
ensuring compliance to 
PFMA and OHSA were 
produced

None None

Comprehensive and 
implementable HR 
Plan for GIFA

Develop the GIFA 
HR Plan

The HR Plan was 
developed

None None

Credible and 
reliable HR Policies 
developed

Review and 
update HR 
Policies for GIFA

HR Policies for GIFA were 
reviewed

None None

Implementable 
Training and 
Development Plan

Develop and 
implement HR 
Training

Developed and 
implemented the HR 
Training

None None

Number of  
performance 
agreements 
completed

Complete annual 
performance 
assessments for 
all staff

All level 1 – 12 quarterly 
assessments were 
completed 

None None

Number of  
performance 
assessments 
completed

Complete annual 
performance 
assessments for 
all staff  

Performance assessments 
for SMS staff  were 
completed

None None

Performance Indicators: (continued)
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Programme 3 Expenditure

Sub-Programme Name

2015/2016

Appropriated Spending

R’000 R’000

Administration (including Stakeholder Management, 
Strategy, Finance and HR)

32 660 30 673

5. TRANSFER PAYMENTS
 GFA and GIFA did not make any transfer payments.

6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS
 GFA and GIFA did not pay or receive any 

conditional grants.

7. DONOR FUNDS
 GFA and GIFA did not receive any donor funds.

8. CAPITAL INVESTMENT
 GIFA procured the following assets during the 

2015/16 financial year (R’000):

Intangible 
Assets

Property, 
plant and 

equipment Total

GIFA 324 381 705
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C. GOVERNANCE
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1. INTRODUCTION
 GIFA is committed to maintain the highest standards 

of  governance that is fundamental to the management 
of  public finances and resources. Governance 
structures are in place to effectively, efficiently and 
economically utilise the allocated resources and 
ensure that it is applied towards the objectives of  the 
organisation.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT
 GIFA has a risk management policy and strategy in 

place and regularly conducts risk assessments to 
determine the effectiveness of its risk management 
strategy and to identify new and emerging risks. There 
is a Risk Management Committee in place that reviews 
the risks and mitigations and report to the CEO.

 The risks within GIFA is managed well and the Audit 
Committee has oversight of  the progress and status 
thereof. 

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 A fraud and corruption strategy is in place and controls 

are set to detect and prevent fraud and corruption 
within the organisation. No incidences of fraud and 
corruption were reported for the 2015/16 financial year. 

4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 Senior Management submits financial disclosures 

and conflict of  interest declarations are made at the 
relevant committee meetings. 

 No conflict of  interest was reported for the 2015/16 
financial year. 

5. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 All GIFA employees are bound by the Code of  

Conduct, which is based on Public Service Code of  
Conduct. 

6. HEALTH SAFETY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

 There are no Health Safety and Environmental issues 
that has a significant impact on the operations of  the 
GIFA. 

7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
 GIFA attends portfolio committees with the Department 

of  Treasury. No significant issues were raised. 

8. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS
 SCOPA did not raise any matters relating to GIFA.

9. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT 
REPORTS

 A detailed plan was developed and implemented 
to resolve all matters reported by the AGSA in the 
previous financial year. 

 Findings relating to Supply Chain management 
(SCM) non-compliance and the 30-day payments 
were addressed.

10. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEES

 Internal audit performed two audits, being SCM and 
performance audits. No significant matters were 
raised. 

 GIFA formed part of  the Gauteng Cluster 2 audit 
committee and attended quarterly meetings. (Refer 
to the Audit Committee report).
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11. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
 Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency

 We are pleased to present our report for the nine 
months ended 31 March 2016.

 Audit Committee and attendance

 The Audit Committee consists of  the external Members 
listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum 
of  at least two times per annum as per the provisions 
of  the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 
Number 1 of  1999) (PFMA). In terms of  the approved 
Terms of  Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), 
five meetings were held during the current year, i.e. 
three meetings to consider the Quarterly Performance 
Reporting (financial and non-financial) and two 
meetings to review and discuss the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Auditor-General of  South Africa’s 
(AGSA) Audit and Management Reports.

Non-Executive members

Name of member Number of meetings attended

Mr. Japie du Plessis 
(Chairperson)

05

Ms. Tshidi Molala 04

Ms. Janice Meissner 04 

Mr. Siphile Buthelezi 01 (Resigned 27 October 2015)

 Executive members

 In terms of  the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials 
listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of  
the Audit Committee:

Compulsory attendees
Number of meetings 
attended

Mr. Oupa Seabi  
(Accounting Officer)

05

Ms. Rianda Kruger  
(Chief  Financial Officer)

05

 The Audit Committee noted that the Accounting 
Officer attended all five scheduled Audit Committee 
meetings. Therefore, the Audit Committee is satisfied 
that the Agency adhered to the provisions of  the 
GPG Audit Committee Charter. 

 The Members of  the Audit Committee met with the 
Senior Management of  the Agency, Internal Audit and 
the AGSA, individually and collectively to address 
risks and challenges facing the Agency. A number of  
in-committee meetings were held to address control 
weaknesses and deviations within the Agency. 

 Audit Committee responsibility

 The Audit Committee reports that it has complied 
with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1)(a) 
of  the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The 
Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal terms of  reference as its Audit 
Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in 
compliance with this Charter and has discharged all 
its responsibilities as contained therein.

 The effectiveness of internal control and Information 
and Communication Technology (ICT) Governance

 The Audit Committee has observed that the overall 
control environment of  the Agency has improved 
during the period under review. The audit opinion 
issued by the AGSA improved from unqualified 
with findings on predetermined objectives and 
compliance with legislation to a clean audit. The 
overall opinion of  Internal Audit on the internal 
control design at the Entity is adequate and partially 
effective.

 The Audit Committee also reviewed the progress 
with respect to the ICT Governance in line with the 
ICT Framework issued by the Department of  Public 
Services and Administration. The Audit Committee is 
satisfied with the ICT internal control. 

 The Agency did implement the recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee.

 Internal Audit 

 Internal Audit was effective during the financial year. 
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit 
Plan represents a clear alignment with the key risks, has 
adequate information systems coverage, and a good 
balance across the different categories of audits, i.e. 
risk-based, mandatory, performance, computer and 
follow-up audits.

 The Audit Committee has noted considerable 
improvement in the communication between the 
Executive Management, the AGSA and the Internal 
Audit Function, which has strengthened the 
Corporate Governance initiatives within the Agency.

 Risk Management

 Progress on the Agency’s risk management was 
reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the actual 
management of  risk is receiving attention, although 
there are areas that still require improvement. 
Management should take full responsibility for the 
entire Enterprise Risk Management process to even 
further enhance the performance of  the Agency.
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 Forensic Investigations

 No forensic investigations were requested for the 
Agency during the financial year under review.

 The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms 
of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act 

 The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and 
quality of  the financial and non-financial quarterly 
reports prepared and submitted by the Accounting 
Officer of  the Agency during the year under review 
and confirms that the reports were in compliance 
with the statutory reporting framework.

 Evaluation of the Annual Financial Statements

 The Audit Committee has:

•	 Reviewed	 and	 discussed	 the	 audited	 Annual	
Financial Statements to be included in the Annual 
Report with the AGSA and the Accounting Officer;

•	 Reviewed	the	Audit	Report	of 	the	AGSA;

•	 Reviewed	 the	 AGSA’s	 Management	 Report	 and	
Management’s response thereto; 

•	 Reviewed	 the	 Agency’s	 compliance	 with	 legal	
and regulatory provisions; and 

•	 Reviewed	significant	 adjustments	 resulting	 from	
the audit. 

 The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts 
the AGSA’s conclusions on the Annual Financial 
Statements and is of  the opinion that the audited 
Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read 
together with the report of  the AGSA.

 One-on-One meetings with the Accounting Officer

 The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting 
Officer for the Agency to address unresolved issues.

 One-on-One meetings with the Executive Authority

 The Audit Committee has met with the Executive 
Authority for the Agency to apprise the MEC on the 
performance of  the Agency.

 Auditor-General of South Africa

 The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to 
ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

Mr Japie du Plessis
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 31 July 2016
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D. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
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1. INTRODUCTION 
 The information contained in this part of  the annual 

report has been prescribed by the Minister for the 
Public Service and Administration for all departments 
in the public service.

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 An organisational structure was approved as part of  

the business plan of  GIFA when it was promulgated 
as a government component in 2014.

 The approved structure was implemented and at the 
end of 2015/16 the vacancy rate was 0%.

 As at 31 March 2016, GIFA had 28 approved 
positions on Persal. All 28 were filled. An additional 

2 employees were seconded to GIFA, bringing the 
staff  complement to 30. For purposes of  this report, 
only information relating to the 28 posts will be used.

3. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT 
STATISTICS

3.1 Personnel related expenditure

 The following tables summarises the final audited 
personnel related expenditure by programme 
and by salary bands. In particular, it provides an 
indication of  the following:

•	 amount	spent	on	personnel	
•	 amount	spent	on	salaries,	overtime,	homeowner’s	

allowances and medical aid. 

Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Programme

Total 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Professional 
and special 

services 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % 
of total 

expenditure

Average 
personnel 

cost per 
employee 

(R’000)

Administration 24 620 9 549 58 773 39% 531

Project Development 19 166 3 219 76 0 17% 585

Structured Finance 3 738 2 895 30 0 77% 643

Total 47 524 15 663 164 773 33% 559

Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Salary band

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)
% of total 

personnel cost
No. of 

employees

Average 
personnel cost 

per employee 
(R’000)

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 209 1 2 104

Skilled (levels 3-5) 181 1 2 91

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 1 057 7 6 176

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 2 372 15 5 474

Senior and Top Management (levels 13-16) 11 844 76 13 911

Total 15 663 100 28 559
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Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the period 1 July 2015 
and 31 March 2016

Programme Salaries Overtime
Home Owners 

Allowance Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 
Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 
Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Administration 6 688 42 0 0 167 1 102 0

Project Development 2 011 12 0 0 128 0 32 0

Structured Finance 1 927 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 10 625 295 134

Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the period 1 July 2015 
and 31 March 2016

Salary band Salaries Overtime
Home Owners 

Allowance Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 
Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 
Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
aid as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs 

Lower skilled  
(levels 1-2) 

122 0 0 0 16 0 37 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 142 0 0 0  0 0 2 0

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

817 5 0 0 32 0 37 0

Highly skilled supervision  
(levels 9-12

1 729 11 0 0 8 0 10 0

Senior Management 
(levels 13-16)

7 815 49 0 0 232 1 47 0

Total 10 625 67 0 0 289 1 134 0

3.2 Employment and Vacancies

 The tables in this section summarise the position with 
regard to employment and vacancies. 

 The following tables summarise the number of  posts 
on the establishment, the number of  employees, the 
vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff  that 
are additional to the establishment. 

 This information is presented in terms of  three key 
variables:

•	 programme

•	 salary	band
•	 critical	 occupations	 (see	 definition	 in	 notes	

below).

 Departments have identified critical occupations 
that need to be monitored. In terms of  current 
regulations, it is possible to create a post on the 
establishment that can be occupied by more than 
one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate reflects 
the percentage of  posts that are not filled. 
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Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2016

Programme

Number of 
posts on 

approved 
establishment

Number of 
posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 
employees 
additional 

to the 
establishment

Administration 19 19 0 2

Project Development 6 6 0 0

Structured Finance 3 3 0 0

Note: Two secondments were made to administration

Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2016

Salary band

Number of 
posts on 

approved 
establishment

Number of 
posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 
employees 
additional 

to the 
establishment

Lower skilled 0 0 0 0

Skilled 2 2 0 1

Highly skilled production 2 2 0 1

Highly skilled supervision 12 12 0 0

Senior Management 12 12 0 0

Total 28 28 0 2

Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2016

Critical occupation

Number of 
posts on 

approved 
establishment

Number of 
posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 
employees 
additional 

to the 
establishment

Highly skilled supervision (9-12) 12 7 0 0

Senior Management (13-16) 12 7 0 0

Total 24 14 0 0

3.3  Filling of SMS Posts

 The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of  the Senior 
Management Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of  SMS posts, reasons 

for not complying with prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.
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Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2015

SMS Level

Total number 
of funded  

SMS posts 

Total number 
of SMS 

posts filled 
% of SMS 

posts filled 

Total number 
of SMS 

posts vacant 

% of SMS 
posts 

vacant

Director-General/Head of  Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 2 2 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 5 5 100 0 0

Salary Level 14 2 2 100 0 0

Salary Level 13 3 3 100 0 0

Total 13 13 100 0 0

Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2015

SMS Level

Total number 
of funded  

SMS posts 

Total number 
of SMS 

posts filled 
% of SMS 

posts filled 

Total number 
of SMS 

posts vacant 

% of SMS 
posts 

vacant

Director-General/Head of  Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 2 2 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 5 5 100 0 0

Salary Level 14 2 2 100 0 0

Salary Level 13 3 3 100 0 0

Total 13 13 100 0 0

Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

SMS Level

Total number 
of funded  

SMS posts 

Total number 
of SMS 

posts filled 
% of SMS 

posts filled 

Total number 
of SMS 

posts vacant 

% of SMS 
posts 

vacant

Director-General/Head of  Department 1 0 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 2 2 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 5 0 100 0 0

Salary Level 14 2 2 100 0 0

Salary Level 13 3 1 100 0 0

Total 13 5 100 0 0

Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 6 months and 
filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

The positions that were filled in 2015/16 were advertised in newspapers, as well as the DPSA vacancy circulars. 
Positions for Head of  Project Development and Head of  Structured Finance are extremely specialised and classified 
as scare skills. These positions were referred to head-hunters.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

Suitable candidates could not be found. Head-hunting processes were undertaken to identify suitable candidates.
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Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 
months for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

No disciplinary steps were taken. Delays were due to scarcity of  skills

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

Suitable candidates could not be found. Head-hunting processes were undertaken to identify suitable candidates.

3.4 Job Evaluation

 Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her 
organisation. In terms of  the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they 
are filled. The following table summarises the number of  jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The 

table also provides statistics on the number of  posts that were upgraded or downgraded. 

Table 3.4.1 Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Salary band

Number of 
posts on 

approved 
establishment

Number 
of Jobs 

Evaluated

% of posts 
evaluated 
by salary 

bands

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded

Number
% of posts 
evaluated Number

% of posts 
evaluated

Lower skilled 
(levels1-2)

0 0 0 0 0 0 100

Skilled (levels 3-5) 2 0 100 0 100 0 100

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

7 0 100 0 100 0 100

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12)

7 0 100 0 100 0 100

Senior Management 
Service A

4 0 100 0 100 0 100

Senior Management 
Service B

2 0 100 0 100 0 100

Senior Management 
Service Band C

2 0 100 0 100 0 100

Senior Management 
Service Band D+

5 0 100 0 100 0 100

Senior Management 
Service Band D

1 0 100 0 100 0 100

Total 28 00 100 0 100 0 100

Note: Out of  33 posts approved on the organisational structure, 5 are frozen and in process of  consultation with the DPSA.
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3.4 Job Evaluation (continued)

 The following table provides a summary of  the number of  employees whose positions were upgraded due to their 
post being upgraded. The number of  employees might differ from the number of  posts upgraded since not all 
employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of  the posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 3.4.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for the period 1 
July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 3 0 0 0 3

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 3 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0

The following table summarises the number of  cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by job 

evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 3.4.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by occupation for the period 
1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Occupation
Number of 
employees

Job 
evaluation 
level

Remuneration 
level Reason for deviation

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 2 4 5 Positions were supposed to be Job Evaluated for 
correct levels to be established.

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

8 7 10	&	11 Employees were previously employed under a 
non-governmental payroll system. With the move 
to persal the salaries were aligned to persal 
notches.

Highly skilled supervision  
(levels 9-12)

8  9 – 12 13 -14 Employees were seconded to the then GFA to 
assist with the establishment of  the agency.

Senior Management 
Service A

5 13 13	&	14 Employees were seconded to the then GFA to 
assist with the establishment of  the agency.

Senior Management 
Service B

2 14 14	&	15	 Other employees were seconded to the then GFA 
to assist with the establishment of  the agency.

Senior Management 
Service Band D+

2 14 16 Employees were seconded to the then GFA to 
assist with the establishment of  the agency.

Senior Management 
Service Band D

0 16 16
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The following table summarises the beneficiaries of  the above in terms of  race, gender, and disability.

Table 3.4.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation for the period 
1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 12 0 1 2 15

Male 7 1 3 2 13

Total 19 1 4 4 28

Employees with a disability 1

Total number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determine by job evaluation 27

3.5. Employment Changes 

 No staff  turnover took place ion 2015/16.

Table 3.5.1 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Occupation
Employees 

1 April 2015

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary level 
promotions as a 
% of employees 

by occupation

Progressions to 
another notch 

within a salary 
level

Notch 
progression as a 
% of employees 

by occupation

Skilled levels N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Highly skilled N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Table 3.5.2 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 July 2015 and 31 March 2016

Salary Band
Employees 

1 April 2015

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary bands 
promotions as a 
% of employees 

by salary level

Progressions to 
another notch 

within a salary 
level

Notch 
progression 

as a % of 
employees by 
salary bands

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 2 2 100% 1 100%

Skilled (levels 3-5) 1 1 100% 1 100%

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Senior Management  
(levels 13-16)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total 3 3 2 100%
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3.6 Employment Equity 

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 
categories as on 31 March 2016

Occupational 
category

Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior 
officials and managers

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Professionals 4 2 1 2 1 1 0 1 13

Technicians and 
associate professionals

1 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 5

Clerks 1 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 9

Service and sales 
workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 7 2 1 3 2 2 0 2 28

Employees with 
disabilities

0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 
bands as on 31 March 2016

Occupational band

Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Management 4 2 1 2 1 1 0 1 12

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management

1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 4

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents

0 1 0 0 8 0 0 0 9

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 6 3 1 2 12 3 0 1 28
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Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 July 2012 to 31 March 2016

Occupational band

Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 5

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 5

Employees with 
disabilities

1 1

Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupational band

Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0

Employees with 
disabilities

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 3.6.5 Disciplinary action for the period 1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016

Disciplinary action

Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Irregular expenditure 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4

2 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4

Table 3.6.6 Skills development for the period 1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupational category

Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior 
officials and managers

0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Professionals 6 1 0 1 1 1 0 2 12

Technicians and 
associate professionals

1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4

Clerks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Service and sales 
workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 7 1 1 1 4 1 0 2 17

Employees with 
disabilities

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.7 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

 All members of  the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information 
regarding the signing of  performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the 
prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken is presented here.

Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2016

SMS Level

Total number 
of funded 
SMS posts

Total number 
of SMS 
members

Total number 
of signed 
performance 
agreements

Signed performance 
agreements as % of 
total number of SMS 
members

Director-General/ Head of  Department 1 1 1 100%

Salary Level 16 2 2 2 100%

Salary Level 15 5 5 5 100%

Salary Level 14 2 2 2 100%

Salary Level 13 3 3 3 100%

Total 13 13 13 100%
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Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 March 2016

Reasons

All SMS members completed their performance contracts for 2015/2016 and have time until the 31 May each respective 
year to complete new performance contracts for the new performance cycle. 

Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance agreements as on 
31 March 2016

Reasons

None – 100% compliance

3.8 Performance Rewards

 To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year 
under review. The information is presented in terms of  race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations 
(see definition in notes below).

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016

Race and Gender

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
group

Cost (R’000) Average cost per 
employee

African N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Female 1 1 100% 5 5

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Coloured N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Female 2 2 100% 41 21

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total 2 2 46 26

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for the period  
1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016 

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost
Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within salary 

bands
Total Cost 

(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

employee

Lower Skilled (levels 1-2) 1 2 50 5 5 0.000

Skilled (levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12)

2 2 42 41 21 0

Total 1 2 50 5 5 0.000
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Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016

Critical 
occupation

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
occupation

Total Cost 
(R’000)

Average cost per 
employee

None 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service for the period 
1 July 2015 to 31 March 2016

Bonuses for the 2015/16 year have not been paid.

Salary band Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a 
% of the total 
personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within salary 

bands
Total Cost 

(R’000)
Average cost 
per employee

Band A N/A 0 0 0 0 0

Band B N/A 0 0 0 0 0

Band C N/A 0 0 0 0 0

Band D N/A 0 0 0 0 0

Total N/A 0 0 0 0 0

3.9 Foreign Workers

 GIFA has no foreign workers employed.

3.10	 Leave	utilisation	

 The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of  sick leave within the public service. The 
following tables provide an indication of  the use of  sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost 
of  the leave is also provided.

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary band
Total 
days

% Days with 
Medical 

certification

Number of 
Employees 
using sick 

leave

% of total 
employees 
using sick 

leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000)

Lower Skills (levels 1-2) 34 41% 2 7% 17 14

Skilled (levels 3-5) 25 72% 5 18% 5 16

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 39 61% 11 39% 4 49

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 24 79% 9 32% 3 59

Top and Senior Management (levels 13-16) 16 43% 1 4% 16 78

Total 138 62% 28 100% 5 216
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Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary band
Total 
days

% Days with 
Medical 

certification

Number of 
Employees 

using 
disability leave

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
Cost (R’000)

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision  
(levels 9-12)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management  
(levels 13-16)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

The table below summarises the utilisation of  annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the 
PSCBC in 2000 requires management of  annual leave to prevent high levels of  accrued leave being paid at the time of  
termination of  service.

Table	3.10.3	Annual	Leave	for	the	period	1	January	2015	to	31	December	2015

Salary band Total days taken

Number of 
Employees using 

annual leave
Average per 
employee

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 44 2 22

Skilled (levels 3-5) 22 1 22

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 44 2 22

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 242 11 22

Senior Management (levels 13-16) 286 12 304

Total 638 28 392

Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary band

Total days of 
capped leave 

taken

Number of 
Employees 

using capped 
leave

Average 
number of 

days taken per 
employee

Average capped 
leave per 

employee as on 
31 March 2015

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (levels 13-16) 0 0 0 19

Total 0 0 0 19
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The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of  leave that was not taken.

Table	3.10.5	Leave	pay-outs	for	the	period	1	April	2015	and	31	March	2016

Reason Total amount (R’000) Number of employees
Average per 

employee (R’000)

Leave pay out for 2015/16 due to non-
utilisation of  leave for the previous cycle

0 0 0

Capped leave pay-outs on termination of  
service for 2015/16

0 0 0

Current leave pay out on termination of  
service for 2015/16

0 0 0

Total 0 0 0

3.11 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high 
risk of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) 

Key steps taken to reduce the risk 

Health Screening seasons are conducted Information sessions

Distribution of  condoms and information pamphlets 

Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. Has the department designated a member of  the SMS to implement 
the provisions contained in Part VI E of  Chapter 1 of  the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001? If  so, provide her/his name and position.

x SMS manager appointed 
an EHWP practitioner to 
oversee and roll out of  
EHWP functions.

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific 
staff  members to promote the health and well-being of  your employees? If  
so, indicate the number of  employees who are involved in this task and the 
annual budget that is available for this purpose. 

x

3. Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health 
Promotion Programme for your employees? If  so, indicate the key elements/
services of  this Programme. 

x

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part 
VI E.5 (e) of  Chapter 1 of  the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If  so, please 
provide the names of  the members of  the committee and the stakeholder(s) 
that they represent. 

x

5. Has the department reviewed its employment policies and practices to 
ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the 
basis of  their HIV status? If  so, list the employment policies/practices so 
reviewed. 

x All policies makes 
provisioning for no 
discrimination. 

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive employees 
or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If  so, list the key 
elements of  these measures. 

x

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary 
Counselling and Testing? If  so, list the results that you have you achieved. 

x Department of  health do 
not visit departments of  less 
than 120 employees. 

8.	 Has	the	department	developed	measures/indicators	to	monitor	&	evaluate	
the impact of  its health promotion programme? If  so, list these measures/
indicators.

x
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3.12	 Labour	Relations

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Subject matter Date

N/A

Total number of Collective agreements None

The following table summarises the outcome of  disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under 
review.

Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling 2 7%

Verbal warning 0 0

Written warning 4 14%

Final written warning 0 0

Suspended without pay 0 0

Fine 0 0

Demotion 0 0

Dismissal 0 0

Not guilty 0 0

Case withdrawn 0 0

Total 6 21%

Total number of Disciplinary hearings finalised 4

Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Type of misconduct Number % of total

Unauthorised Expenditure 4 14%

Counselling Sessions 2 7%

Total 6 21%

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Grievances Number % of Total

Number of  grievances resolved N/A

Number of  grievances not resolved N/A

Total number of grievances lodged N/A

Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Disputes Number % of Total

Number of  disputes upheld N/A

Number of  disputes dismissed N/A

Total number of disputes lodged N/A
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Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 

Total number of  persons working days lost N/A

Total costs working days lost N/A

Amount recovered as a result of  no work no pay (R’000) N/A

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Number of  people suspended N/A

Number of  people whose suspension exceeded 30 days N/A

Average number of  days suspended N/A

Cost of  suspension(R’000) N/A

3.13 Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of  the department with regard to skills development. 

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 

Occupational category Gender

Number of 
employees 

as at 
1 April  
2016

Training needs identified at start of the 
 reporting period

Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other 
forms 

of 
training Total

Legislators, senior officials and managers Female 0 0 3 0 0

Male 0 0 5 0 0

Professionals Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Technicians and associate professionals Female 0 0 1 0 0

Male 0 0 3 0 0

Clerks Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Service and sales workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 12 0 0
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Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Occupational category Gender

Number of 
employees 

as at  
1 April 2015

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
& other short 

courses
Other forms 
of training Total

Legislators, senior 
officials and managers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Professionals Female 2 0 1 1 7

Male 4 0 4 0 4

Technicians and 
associate professionals

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Clerks Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Service and sales 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 6 0 5 1 7

3.14 Injury on duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only N/A N/A

Temporary Total Disablement N/A N/A

Permanent Disablement N/A N/A

Fatal N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A
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3.15 Utilisation of Consultants

 The following tables relates information on the utilisation of  consultants in the department. In terms of  the Public 
Service Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which provides in 
terms of  a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of  the following professional services to a department against 
remuneration received from any source:

(a) The rendering of  expert advice;
(b) The drafting of  proposals for the execution of  specific tasks; and
(c) The execution of  a specific task which is of  a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of  a 

department.

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Project title

Total number of 
consultants that  

worked on project Duration (work days) Contract value in Rand

AFS Review 1 2 28 728.00

Monitoring and Evaluation 2 15 285 000.00

Contracts Review 2 2 22 811.40

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration Work days Total contract value in Rand

3 5 19 336 539.40

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged 
Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Project title
Percentage ownership  

by HDI groups
Percentage management 

by HDI groups

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that work 

on the project

Monitoring and Evaluation 100 100 100

Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Project title

Total Number of 
consultants that worked on 

project Duration (work days)
Donor and contract value 

in Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration/work days Total contract value in Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals 
(HDIs) for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Project title
Percentage ownership  

by HDI groups
Percentage management 

by HDI groups

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that work 

on the project

N/A N/A N/A N/A

3.16 Severance Packages

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Not Applicable No Severance Package Offered 

Salary band

Number of 
applications 

received

Number of 
applications 

referred to the 
MPSA

Number of 
applications 
supported by 

MPSA

Number of 
packages 

approved by 
department

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) N/A

Skilled (levels 3-5)

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12)

Senior Management (levels 13-16)

Total
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1. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-
GENERAL TO THE GAUTENG 
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON 
THE GAUTENG INFRASTRUCTURE 
FINANCING AGENCY

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1. I have audited the financial statements of  the 
Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency set out 
on pages 56 to 82, which comprise the statement of  
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement 
of  financial performance, statement of  changes in 
net assets and cash flow statement for the year 
then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 
summary of  significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial 
statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of  these financial 
statements in accordance with the South African 
Standards of  Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (SA Standards of  GRAP) and the 
requirements of  the Public Finance Management 
Act of  South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of  1999) (PFMA), 
and for such internal control as the accounting 
officer determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of  financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with the International 
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require 
that I comply with ethical requirements, and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of  the risks 
of  material misstatement of  the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the trading entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of  the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of  expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of  the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of  accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of  accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of  the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of  the Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency 
as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with the SA Standards of  GRAP and 
the requirements of  the PFMA.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

7. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of  South 
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of  2004) (PAA) and the 
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected programmes presented 
in the annual performance report, compliance 
with legislation and internal control. The objective 
of  my tests was to identify reportable findings 
as described under each subheading but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance on these 
matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or 
conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about 
the usefulness and reliability of  the reported 
performance information for the following selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance 
report of  the Gauteng Infrastructure Financing 
Agency for the year ended 31 March 2016:

•	 Programme	1:	Project	Development	on	pages	13	
to 15

•	 Programme	2:	Structured	Finance	on	pages	16	
to 20

9. I evaluated the reported performance information 
against the overall criteria of  usefulness and 
reliability. 

10. I evaluated the usefulness of  the reported 
performance information to determine whether 
it was presented in accordance with the National 
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether 
the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned programmes. I further performed tests 
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to determine whether indicators and targets were 
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 
bound and relevant, as required by the National 
Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of  the reported 
performance information to determine whether it 
was valid, accurate and complete.

12. I did not raise any material findings relating to 
the usefulness and reliability of  the reported 
performance information for the selected 
programmes.

Additional matters

13. I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

14. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 
13 to 27 for information on the achievement of  the 
planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation

15. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that 
the Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency had 
complied with applicable legislation regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other 
related matters. 

16. I did not identify any instances of  material non-
compliance with selected specific requirements 
of  applicable legislation, as set out in the general 
notice issued in terms of  the PAA.

Internal control

17. I considered internal control relevant to my audit 
of  the financial statements, the performance report 
and compliance with legislation. 

18. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in 
internal control.

Johannesburg
31 July 2016
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Note 

2016 

R‘000 

Assets

Current Assets  129 006

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 120 685

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 5   8 321

Non-Current Assets 5 033

Receivables from exchange transactions 6 2 000

Intangible Assets 7 1 480

Property, Plant and Equipment 8 1 553

Total Assets 134 039

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 3 639

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 12 2 657

Provisions 13 964

Finance lease 15 18

Non-current liabilities 94 613

Leave pay provision 13 145

Deferred income 10 94 446

Finance lease 15 22

Total liabilities 98 252

Net Assets

Net assets and reserves 35 787

Accumulated surplus 35 787

Total Net Assets 134 039

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2016
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Note 

2016 

R‘000 

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

Transfer payment 16 45 000

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Other Income 17 5 851

Staff  costs 18 (16 567)

Depreciation and amortisation 19 (1 263)

Project development fees (14 676)

Other expenditure 20 (7 713)

Surplus for the Period 10 632

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the nine months ended 31 March 2016
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R‘000 

Accumulated 
Surplus

R‘000 

Total net 
assets

Operational balance transferred from GFA as at 1 July 2015  120 129 120 129

Total corrections to transferred balance  (74 974) (74 974)

Deferred income  (75 000) (75 000

Property, plant and equipment  26 26

Balance as at 1 July 2015  45 155 45 155

Total changes during the period  (9 368) (9 368)

Surplus for the 9 months ended 31 March 2016  10 632 10 632

Movement in Deferred income  (20 000) (20 000)

Balance as at 31 March 2016  35 787 35 787

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the nine months ended 31 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note 

2016 

R‘000 

Cash flow from operating activities

Receipts 74 892

Transfer payment 69 595

Other Receipts 5 297

Payments (40 182)

Employee costs (15 903)

Payments to Suppliers (24 279)

Net Cashflows from Operating Activities 22 34 710

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of  property, plant and equipment (381)

Acquisition of  intangible assets (324)

Proceeds from sale of  assets

Net Cashflows from Investing Activities (705)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 34 005

Cash transferred from GFA bank account 86 680

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 120 685

for the nine months ended 31 March 2016



60

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the nine months ended 31 March 2016

1. General information

 The Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency 
(GIFA) is a Government Component of  the Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury (GPT) and was established with 
the approval of  the Gauteng Provincial Treasury and 
the Executive Committee of  the Province. 

 The GIFA was fully established on 1 July 2015, with 
closing balances from the dis-established trading 
entity, Gauteng Funding Agency, transferred to the 
GIFA.

 The GIFA is governed by policies and procedures in 
line with that of  the GPT and its financial statements 
are accounted for in terms of  the Standards of  
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 
as from 1 July 2015. As part of  the GPT, the GIFA is 
audited by the Auditor-General and has to comply 
with the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of  
1999 (as amended by Act 29 of  1999). 

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

 The principal accounting policies applied in the 
preparation of  these financial statements are set out 
below and have been consistently applied for the 
reporting period, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

 The financial statements have been prepared 
in compliance with the Standards of  Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), including 
any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued 
by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), on 1 April 
2015 – refer to note 2.2 for more detail. This is in 
accordance with the following policies, which have 
been applied consistently in all material aspects, 
unless otherwise indicated. 

 Where appropriate and meaningful, additional 
information has been disclosed to enhance the 
usefulness of  the financial statements and to comply 
with the statutory requirements of  the Public Finance 
Management Act, Act 1 of  1999 (as amended by Act 
29 of  1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued. 

 The financial statements are prepared on an accrual 
basis of  accounting, using the historical cost 
convention. Except as otherwise disclosed, these 
accounting policies are consistent with those applied 
by the dis-established GFA trading entity and in line 
with the GPT policies. 

 The preparation of  the financial statements in 
conformity with GRAP requires the use of  some 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgment in the process 
of  applying the accounting policies. The areas that 
required judgment in the process of  application are 
disclosed in policy note 2.22.

 The financial statements of  the GIFA have been 
prepared on a going concern basis, in line with 
GRAP 105, “Transfer of  functions between entities 
under common control”. All GFA assets, liabilities 
and surpluses have been transferred to the Gauteng 
Infrastructure Financing Agency (GIFA) at net 
book value as shown in the GFA Annual Financial 
Statements. All contracts have been ceded to GIFA. 
The transfer was done on 30 June 2015. (Also refer to 
note 25)

2.2 Significant accounting policies and disclosure

 The GIFA has prepared its financial statements in 
compliance with Standards of  Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any 
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by 
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) as from 1 April 
2015. The list of  Standards of  GRAP, interpretations 
and directives and the impact on adoption are as 
follows:

A. Standards, interpretations and amendments to 
these adopted by the government component:

 Applicable Standards of  GRAP that the 
government component is required to apply 
and that are applicable to the operations of  the 
government component:
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Standards Description Objective

GRAP 1 Presentation 
of  Financial 
Statements

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the basis for presentation of  general purpose 
financial statements, to ensure comparability both with the entity’s financial statements 
of  previous periods and with the financial statements of  other entities. To achieve this 
objective, this Standard sets out overall considerations for the presentation of  financial 
statements, guidelines for their structure and minimum requirements for their content. 
The recognition, measurement and disclosure of  specific transactions, other events and 
conditions are dealt with in other Standards of  GRAP.

GRAP 2 Cash Flow 
Statements

The objective of  this Standard is to require the provision of  information about the historical 
changes in cash and cash equivalents of  an entity by means of  a cash flow statement, 
which classifies cash flows during the period from operating, investing and financing 
activities.

GRAP 3 Accounting 
Policies, Changes 
in Accounting 
Estimates and 
Errors

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the criteria for selecting and changing 
accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment and disclosure of  changes 
in accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and corrections of  errors. The 
Standard is intended to enhance the relevance and reliability of  the entity’s financial 
statements and the comparability of  those financial statements over time and with the 
financial statements of  other entities.

Disclosure requirements for accounting policies, except those for changes in accounting 
policies, are set out in the Standard of  GRAP on Presentation of  Financial Statements.

GRAP 4 The effects 
of  changes in 
Foreign Exchange 
Rates

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe how to include foreign currency transactions 
and foreign operations in the financial statements of  an entity and how to translate financial 
statements into a presentation currency.

GRAP 9 Revenue from 
Exchange 
Transactions

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment of  revenue arising 
from exchange transactions and events. The primary issue in accounting for revenue is 
determining when to recognise revenue. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and these benefits can 
be measured reliably. This Standard identifies the circumstances in which these criteria 
will be met and, therefore, revenue will be recognised. It also provides practical guidance 
on the application of  these criteria.

GRAP 13 Leases The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe, for lessees and lessors, the appropriate 
accounting policies and disclosures to apply in relation to leases.

GRAP 14 Events After the 
Reporting Date

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe:
(a)  when an entity should adjust its financial statements for events after the reporting 

date; and
(b)  the disclosures that an entity should give about the date when the financial statements 

were authorised for issue and about events after the reporting date.

The Standard also requires that an entity should not prepare its financial statements on 
a going concern basis if  events after the reporting date indicate that the going concern 
assumption is not appropriate.
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Standards Description Objective

GRAP 17 Property, Plant 
and Equipment

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment for property, plant 
and equipment so that the users of  financial statements can discern information about an 
entity’s investment in its property, plant and equipment and the changes in such investment. 
The principal issues in accounting for property, plant and equipment are the recognition of  
the assets, the determination of  their carrying amounts and the depreciation charges and 
impairment losses to be recognised in relation to them.

GRAP 19 Provisions, 
Contingent 
Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

The objective of  this Standard is to define provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets, identify the circumstances in which provisions should be recognised, how they 
should be measured and the disclosures that should be made about them. The Standard 
also requires that certain information be disclosed about contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets in the notes to the financial statements to enable users to understand 
their nature, timing and amount.

GRAP 21 Impairment 
of  Non-cash-
generating Assets

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the procedures that an entity applies to 
determine whether a non-cash-generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment 
losses are recognised. The Standard also specifies when an entity would reverse an 
impairment loss and prescribes disclosures. 

GRAP 23 Revenue from 
Non-exchange 
Transactions 
(Taxes and 
Transfers)

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe requirements for the financial reporting of  
revenue arising from non-exchange transactions, other than non-exchange transactions 
that give rise to an entity combination. The Standard deals with issues that need to be 
considered in recognising and measuring revenue from non-exchange transactions, 
including the identification of  contributions from owners.

The Standard differentiates between conditions and restrictions. Only for conditions 
attached to a non-exchange transaction may a liability be recognised, as the conditions 
are not met at reporting date.

GRAP 25 Employee Benefits The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee 
benefits. 

GRAP 26 Impairment of  
Cash-generating 
Assets

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the procedures that an entity applies to 
determine whether a cash-generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment 
losses are recognised. The Standard also specifies when an entity would reverse an 
impairment loss and prescribes disclosures.

GRAP 31 Intangible Assets The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment for intangible 
assets that are not dealt with specifically in another Standard of  GRAP. This Standard 
requires an entity to recognise an intangible asset if, and only if, specified criteria are met. 
The Standard also specifies how to measure the carrying amount of  intangible assets and 
requires specified disclosures about intangible assets. 

GRAP 100 Discontinued 
Operations

The objective of  this Standard is to specify the presentation and disclosure of  discontinued 
operations. In particular, the Standard requires the results of  discontinued operations to be 
presented separately in the statement of  financial performance with additional disclosures 
provided in the notes to the financial statements. 

GRAP 104 Financial 
Instruments

This Standard prescribes recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
requirements for financial instruments. Financial instruments are broadly defined as those 
contracts that result in a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or residual 
interest in another entity. A key distinguishing factor between financial assets and financial 
liabilities and other assets and liabilities, is that they are settled in cash or by exchanging 
financial instruments rather than through the provision of  goods or services. 

GRAP 105 Transfer of  
Functions 
between Entities 
Under Common 
Control

The objective of  this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer and 
transferor in a transfer of  functions between entities under common control. 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 Interpretations of the Standards of GRAP that the government component is required to apply and that are applicable 
to the operations of the government component:

Interpretations Description

IGRAP 1 Applying the Probability Test on Initial Recognition of  Revenue

IGRAP 3 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

IGRAP 13 Operating leases – incentives

IGRAP 14 Recognised Accounting Practice Evaluating the Substance of  Transactions involving the Legal Form 

of  a Lease

IGRAP 16 Intangible assets – website costs

 Directives issued and effective that the government component is required to apply and that are applicable to the 
operations of the government component:

Directives Description

Directive 1 Repeal of  Existing Transitional Provisions in, and Consequential Amendments to, Standards of  

GRAP

Directive 2 Transitional Provisions for the Adoption of  Standards of  GRAP by Public Entities, Municipal Entities 

and Constitutional Institutions

Directive 5 Determining the GRAP Reporting Framework

Directive 7 The Application of  Deemed Cost on the Adoption of  Standards of  GRAP

B. Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an effective date, that the 
government component may consider in formulating an accounting policy:

Standards Description Objective

GRAP 20 Related Party 
Disclosures

The objective of  this Standard is to ensure that a reporting entity’s financial statements 
contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial 
position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of  related 
parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.

GRAP 32 Standard of  
GRAP on Service 
Concession 
Arrangements: 
Grantor

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe the accounting for service concession 
arrangements by the grantor, a public sector entity. 

GRAP 108 Statutory 
Receivables

The objective of  this Standard is to prescribe accounting requirements for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of  statutory receivables.

GRAP 109 Accounting by 
Principals and 
Agents 

The objective of  this Standard is to outline principles to be used by an entity to assess 
whether it is party to a principal-agent arrangement, and whether it is a principal or 
an agent in undertaking transactions in terms of  such an arrangement. 

IGRAP 17 Interpretation of  the Standard of  GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor controls 
a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset
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C. Standards of GRAP, interpretations, directives, amendments to standards and amendments to interpretations issued 
by the ASB and that are effective but not applicable to GIFA:

Standard Description

GRAP 5 Borrowing Costs

GRAP 6 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

GRAP 7 Investments in Associates

GRAP 8 Interests in Joint Ventures

GRAP 10 Financial Reporting In Hyperinflationary Economies

GRAP 11 Construction Contracts

GRAP 12 Inventories

GRAP 16 Investment Property

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting

GRAP 24 Presentation of  Budget information in Financial Statements

GRAP 27 Agriculture

GRAP 103  Heritage Assets

GRAP 106 Transfer of  Functions between entities not under common control

GRAP 107 Mergers

IGRAP 2 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities

IGRAP 4
Practice Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 
Rehabilitation Funds

IGRAP 5
Applying the Restatement Approach under The Standard of  GRAP on Financial Reporting in 
Hyperinflationary Economies

IGRAP 6 Loyalty Programmes

IGRAP 7 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum funding Requirements and their Interaction

IGRAP 8 Agreements for the Construction of  Assets from Exchange Transactions

IGRAP 9 Distributions of  Non-Cash Assets to Owners

IGRAP 10 Assets Received From Customers

IGRAP 11 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities

IGRAP 12 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-monetary Contributions by Ventures

IGRAP 15 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

Directive 3 Transitional provisions for high capacity municipalities

Directive 4 Transitional provisions for medium and low capacity municipalities

Directive 6 Transitional provisions for revenue collected by the South African Revenue Service (SARS)

Directive 8 Transitional provisions for Parliament and Provincial Legislatures

Guide 1 Guideline on Accounting for Public Private Partnerships

IFRS 4 (AC 141) Insurance Contracts

IFRS 6 (AC 143) Exploration for and Evaluation of  Mineral Resources

IFRIC12 (AC445) Service Concession Arrangements

SIC–25 (AC 425) Income Taxes – Changes in the Tax Status of  an Entity or its Shareholders

SIC–29 (AC 429) Service Concession Arrangements – Disclosures
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 All amounts have been presented in the currency 
of  the South African Rand (ZAR), which is also the 
functional currency of  the government component.

2.4 Rounding 

 Unless otherwise stated all financial data have been 
rounded to the nearest one thousand (R’000).

2.5 Foreign currency translation

 Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated at the closing 
rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains 
and losses resulting from the settlement of  such 
transactions and from the translation at year-end 
exchange rates are recognised in the statement of  
financial performance.

2.6 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

 After each quarterly asset count GIFA assesses 
property, plant and equipment for impairment. If  
there are any indications of  impairment the GIFA 
estimates the recoverable service amount of  the 
asset. If  the asset's carrying value exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is impaired. In 
assessing whether there is any indication that 
an asset may be impaired, the GIFA considers 
all sources information. The impairment loss is 
charged as an expense in the Statement of  Financial 
Performance.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

 The cost of  an item of  property, plant and equipment 
is recognised as an asset if  it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the item will flow to the GFA and the cost or fair 
value of  the item can be measured reliably. 

 Property, plant and equipment is recognised using 
the cost model. Items are measured initially at cost 
and after initial recognition, stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

 When an item of  property, plant and equipment is 
acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is 
its fair value as at date of  acquisition.

 Repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
statement of  financial performance during the 
financial period in which they are incurred.  

 Depreciation is charged so as to write off  the cost 
of  assets to residual values over its expected useful 
lives using the straight-line basis. Estimated useful 
lives are as follows:

 Computer equipment  – 3 to 8 years
 Office equipment  – 3 to 10 years
 Office furniture  – 5 to 10 years
 Audio visual equipment  – 3 to 10 years
 Leasehold improvements  – 8 years

 Residual values, remaining useful lives and 
depreciation methods are reviewed annually and 
adjustments are made if  appropriate.

 An asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable service amount if  the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated 
recoverable service amount.

 The carrying amount of  an item of  property, plant 
and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits or service potential are 
expected from its use or disposal.

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 
and are recognised in the statement of  financial 
performance. 

2.8 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary 
asset without physical substance. An asset is 
identifiable if  it either: 

a) is separable, i.e. is capable of  being separated 
or divided from the GIFA and sold, transferred, 
licensed, rented or exchanged, either 
individually or together with a related contract, 
identifiable asset or liability, regardless of  
whether the GIFA intends to do so; or 

b) arises from contractual or other legal rights, 
excluding those granted by statue, regardless of  
whether those rights are transferable or separable 
from the GIFA or from other rights and obligations. 

 An intangible asset is recognised if  it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the GIFA and the 
cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

 Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. 

 When an intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or 
for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date 
of  acquisition.

 After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

 Costs associated with the acquisition of  computer 
software are recognised as intangible assets. 
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2.8 Intangible assets (continued) 

 Computer software is amortised over their expected 
useful lives using the straight-line basis. Estimated 
useful life:

Intangible assets  

(general software that are upgradable) 

– maximum 

10 years

Intangible assets (software  

specifically developed for GIFA) 

–  4 years

 The remaining useful lives and amortisation method 
are reviewed annually and adjustments are made if  
appropriate. 

 An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. 

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 
and are recognised in the statement of  financial 
performance. 

2.9 Contingent Assets

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from 
past events, and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of  one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of  the entity.

 Feasibility costs paid from the Project Preparation 
Facility (PPF) are added to the total cost of  the 
project. When such projects are funded successfully, 
the feasibility costs are recovered and paid back 
into the PPF.

 Contingent assets are not recognised in financial 
statements since this may result in the recognition 
of  revenue that may never be realised. Contingent 
assets are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements and when the realisation of  revenue 
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a 
contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

 Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure 
that developments are appropriately reflected in the 
financial statements. 

 If  it has become virtually certain that an inflow of  
economic benefits or service potential will arise 
and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the 
asset and the related revenue are recognised in 
the financial statements of  the period in which the 
change occurs. 

2.10 Leasehold improvements 

 Leasehold improvements expenditure is capitalised 
and depreciated over the original lease period of  
five years plus the extended lease period of  three 
years. The amount being depreciated is net of  the 
tenant allowance paid to the entity, which reduces 
the capitalised cost of  the leasehold improvements. 
The tenant allowance paid to the entity did not 
include VAT, as the GIFA is not registered for VAT 
purposes. 

2.11 Financial instruments

 The GIFA classifies its financial instruments based 
on the purpose for which the financial instruments 
were acquired. Management determines the 
classification of  its financial instruments at initial 
recognition.

 The GIFA recognises a financial instrument in its 
statement of  financial position when it becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of  the instrument. 
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair 
value, including transaction costs. 

 GIFA recognises financial assets using trade date 
accounting.

 Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, less accumulated impairment 
losses. 

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest method. 

 Short-term receivables and payables are not 
discounted where the initial credit period granted 
or received is consistent with terms used in the 
public sector, either through established practices 
or legislation.

 For financial instruments measured at amortised 
cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the financial instrument is derecognised, and 
through the amortisation process. 

 A financial asset is derecognised only when:

(a)  the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

(b)  GIFA transfers to another party substantially all 
of  the risks and rewards of  ownership of  the 
financial asset; or
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(c)  GIFA, despite having retained some significant 
risks and rewards of  ownership of  the financial 
asset, has transferred control of  the asset 
to another party and the other party has the 
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to 
an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise 
that ability unilaterally and without needing to 
impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In 
this case, GIFA shall:

(i)  derecognise the asset; and
(ii)  recognise separately any rights and 

obligations created or retained in the 
transfer.

 GIFA shall remove a financial liability (or a part of  
a financial liability) from its statement of  financial 
position when, and only when, it is extinguished — 
i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

 A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset 
and the net amount presented in the statement of  
financial position when GIFA currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off  the recognised amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 The statement of  financial position includes financial 
assets classified as financial assets at amortised 
cost. 

 Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. They are 
included in current assets, except for maturities 
greater than 12 months after the reporting date. 
These are classified as non-current assets. The 
GIFA’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise 
‘Receivables’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the 
statement of  financial position. Details included in 
note 2.12 and 2.13 respectively.

 The statement of  financial position includes financial 
liabilities classified as financial liabilities at amortised 
cost. 

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost are non-
derivative financial liabilities with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. The GIFA’s financial liabilities at 
amortised cost comprise ‘Trade payables’ in the 
statement of  financial position. Details included in 
note 2.15. 

2.12 Receivables from exchange transactions

 Receivables comprise rental deposit paid, as well as 
receivables due from other Gauteng Departments 
and Local Government institutions emanating from 
co-funding agreements and other arms-length 
transactions. Receivables are recognised initially at 
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less 
provision for impairment. 

 A provision for impairment of  receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that 
the GIFA will not be able to collect all amounts due 
according to the original terms of  the receivables. 
Significant financial difficulties of  the receivable, 
probability that the receivable will enter bankruptcy 
or financial reorganisation, and default or 
delinquency in payments are considered indicators 
that the receivable is impaired. 

 The amount of  the provision is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of  estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. The impairment is 
provided for by reducing the carrying amount of  the 
asset directly and is recognised in the statement of  
financial performance. 

 Impairment losses are reversed when an increase 
in the financial asset's recoverable amount can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised, subject to the 
restriction that the carrying amount of  the financial 
asset at the date that the impairment is reversed 
shall not exceed what the carrying amount would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised. 
Subsequent recoveries of  amounts previously 
written off  are reversed directly and recognised in 
the statement of  financial performance. 

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balance 
and petty cash held.

 Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially at 
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.

 Interest earned on the bank balance does not 
accrue to the GIFA but to the Revenue Fund of  the 
Gauteng Provincial Government. For the 2015/2016 
financial year, GIFA requested to retain the interest 
earned. 
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2.14 Liabilities

 Liabilities are present obligations of  the entity 
arising from past events, the settlement of  which is 
expected to result in an outflow from the entity of  
resources embodying economic benefits or service 
potential. 

2.15 Trade payables

 Trade payables comprise accruals for services 
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of  
business. 

 Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value 
and subsequently at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.

2.16 Compensation of employees

 The accounting policy in terms of  the compensation 
of  employees is in line with the policy of  the Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury, and is as follows:

a) Short-term employee benefits
 The costs of  short-term employee benefits 

are expensed in the statement of  financial 
performance in the year in which it occurs. 

 Short-term employee benefits that give rise 
to a present or constructive obligation are 
recognised and disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. This is limited to a leave 
pay accrual as set out in note 13. 

 Salaries and wages shown in the statement 
of  financial performance comprise payments 
to employees (including leave entitlements, 
thirteenth cheque and performance bonuses).

b) Post-retirement benefits
 Employer contributions are expensed in the 

statement of  financial performance. 

 No provision is made for retirement benefits in 
the financial statements of  the GIFA, or in the 
financial statements of  the parent department. 
Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the 
financial statements of  the National Revenue 
Funds and not in the financial statements of  the 
employer department. This policy is in line with 
the Gauteng Provincial Treasury’s policy. 

c) Termination benefits
 Termination benefits such as severance 

packages are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of  financial performance. 

d) Other long-term employee benefits
 Other long-term employee benefits (such as 

capped leave) are recognised as expenditure in 
the statement of  financial performance.

2.17 Key management personnel

 Compensation paid to key management personnel 
is included in the disclosure for related parties. 

2.18 Revenue from exchange transactions

 An exchange transaction is one in which the 
GIFA receives assets or services, or has liabilities 
extinguished, and directly gives approximately 
equal value (primarily in the form of  goods, services 
or use of  assets) to the other party in exchange.

 The GIFA recognises revenue when the amount of  
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable 
that future economic benefits or service potential will 
flow to the entity. 

 Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion 
basis using the effective interest method. When 
a receivable is impaired, the GIFA reduces the 
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being 
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
original effective interest rate of  the instrument, and 
continues unwinding the discount as interest income. 
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised 
using the original effective interest rate. 

2.19 Transfer payments and donations (revenue from 
non-exchange transactions)

 Non-exchange transactions are transactions that 
are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange 
transaction, the GIFA either receives value from 
another party without directly giving approximately 
equal value in exchange, or gives value to another 
party without directly receiving approximately equal 
value in exchange.

 Revenue received from transfer payments and 
donations are recognised as revenue to the extent 
that the GIFA has complied with any of  the criteria, 
conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. 
A deferred income liability is recognised to the 
extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have 
not been met.

 As the GIFA satisfies the present obligation 
recognised as a liability (deferred income), it reduces 
the carrying amount of  the liability and recognises 
an amount of  revenue equal to that reduction.
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 Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises 
the fair value of  a transfer payment received or 
receivable from the Gauteng Provincial Treasury. 

 The GIFA received a transfer payment from Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury to fund its operating expenditure, 
which is recognised in full as revenue.

2.20 Leases

 A lease is classified as a finance lease if  it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating 
lease if  it does not transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership. 

 FINANCE LEASES - LESSEE 
 Finance leases are recognised as assets in the 

statement of  changes in net assets at amounts 
equal to the fair value of  the leased property or, 
if  lower, the present value of  the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor 
is included in the statement of  changes in net 
assets as a finance lease obligation. The discount 
rate used in calculating the present value of  the 
minimum lease payments is the prime lending rate at 
the inception of  the lease. Minimum lease payments 
are apportioned between the finance charge and 
reduction of  the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on 
the remaining balance of  the liability. Any contingent 
rents are expensed in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

 The lease of  printers (office equipment) is classified 
as a finance lease.

 OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE 
 Payments made under operating leases (net of  any 

incentives received from the lessor) are charged to 
the statement of  financial performance on a straight-
line basis over the period of  the lease. 

 The difference between the amounts recognised 
as an expense and the contractual payments are 
recognised as an operating lease liability.

 Receipts from operating leases (net of  any incentives 
paid to the lessee) are recognised in the statement 
of  financial performance on a straight-line basis of  
the period of  the lease.

 The lease for the building is classified as an operating 
lease and payments made under the operating 
lease are charged to the statement of  financial 

performance on a straight-line basis over the period 
of  the lease. The difference between actual lease 
payments and the amount recognised is shown as 
part of  current liabilities.

 A lease deposit is held by the landlord as collateral 
for damages and amounts owed by the GIFA. The 
lease deposit can be applied to such damages and 
outstanding amounts at the end of  the lease period.

 The sub-lease of  the ground floor of  the building 
is classified as an operating lease and receipts 
from the operating sub-lease are recognised in the 
statement of  financial performance on a straight-line 
basis over the period of  the lease. The difference 
between actual lease payments and the amount 
recognised is shown as part of  current liabilities, 
and the difference between actual sub-lease 
receipts and the amount recognised is shown as 
part of  current assets.

 The lease commitment and sub-lease receivable 
for future years are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

2.21 Commitments 

 Contracted commitments (except for the lease of  
the building) to be paid after 1 April 2016 are not 
recognised in the statement of  financial position 
as a liability or as expenditure in the statement 
of  financial performance, but are included in the 
disclosure notes. 

 These commitments are linked to specific service 
delivery contracts and are payable in future years. 

2.22 Key areas of judgment in applying accounting 
policies

 The following key areas of  judgment were required 
in preparation of  the financial statements:

a) The estimated useful lives of  assets are based 
on its expected useful lives and are measured 
against the industry norms.

b) The recoverability of  any financial assets, having 
to make provisions in cases where recoverability 
might be questionable.

c) Transfer of  receivables from contingent assets 
to receivables, based on level of  certainty of  
future events.

2.23 Unauthorised expenditure

 Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure in excess 
of  allocated funds or expenditure not in accordance 
with the purpose of  the GIFA. 
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 When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is 
recognised as an asset in the statement of  financial 
position, until such time as the expenditure is either 
approved by the relevant authority, recovered from 
the responsible person or written off  as irrecoverable. 

 Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding 
is derecognised from the statement of  financial 
position when the unauthorised expenditure is 
approved and the related funds are received. 

 Where the amount is approved without funding it 
is recognised as expenditure in the statement of  
financial performance on the date of  approval. 

2.24 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure 
which was made in vain and would have been 
avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised 
as expenditure in the statement of  financial 
performance according to the nature of  the 
payment and not as a separate line item on the face 
of  the statement of  financial performance. If  the 
expenditure is recoverable it is treated as an asset 
until it is recovered from the responsible person or 
written off  as irrecoverable. 

2.25 Irregular expenditure

 Irregular expenditure is expenditure other than 
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of  or that is not in accordance with a requirement 
of  any legislation applicable to GIFA, including the 
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999. 

 Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure 
in the statement of  financial performance. If  the 
relevant authority does not condone the expenditure 
it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written 
off  as irrecoverable.

2.26 Budget information 

 The budget of  the GIFA is not made available 
publically and thus no comparatives between 
budgeted and actual activities are given. The 
approved budget of  the GIFA is prepared on a cash 
basis and presented by economic classification 
linked to performance outcome objectives. The 
balance of  the budget for 2015/16 was transferred 
from GFA to GIFA.

2.27 Related parties

 The GIFA, being a Government Component of  the 
Gauteng Treasury, is related through this relationship, 
to all other GPG Departments and entities, as well as 
National Government Departments.

 Management are those persons responsible for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities 
of  the entity, including those charged with the 
governance of  the entity in accordance with 
legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions. 

 Close members of  the family of  a person are 
considered to be those family members who may be 
expected to influence management, or be influenced 
by management in their dealings with the entity. 

 Only transactions with related parties not in arm’s 
length or not in the ordinary course of  business are 
disclosed. 

2.28 Subsequent events

 Events after the reporting date, are those events both 
favourable and unfavourable that occur between 
the reporting date and the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. GIFA shall only 
adjust the amounts recognised in its Annual Financial 
Statements to reflect adjusting events after the 
reporting date for those events that provide evidence 
of  conditions that existed at the reporting date. 

3. Financial risk management

 Financial risk factors

 The GIFA’s activities expose it to some financial risks, 
most of  which are managed through the procurement 
and payment processes. The GIFA did not have 
direct access to its bank account, and thus cash 
management was not performed at GIFA but at GPT. 

 Risk management is the responsibility of  GIFA 
management and is monitored by a central team within 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury. The most significant 
financial risks are related to reporting (inaccurate 
financial information that might result in inaccurate 
reporting and not meeting reporting deadlines in 
terms of  PFMA) and financial systems (payment 
systems not aligned to business processes). The risk 
of  reporting was mitigated by the implementation of  
an independent financial package, enabling the GIFA 
to record financial information on an accrual basis. 
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a) Market risk 
 Fair value interest rate risk 
 The GIFA had an interest-bearing asset, being 

the rental deposit. Interest is earned and 
capitalised every year at a rate of  prime minus 
2%, compounded annually in arrears. 

 Exposure to market interest rates is limited to 
interest earned on the rental deposit and to 
interest payable on late settlement of  accounts, 
which is governed by the 30-day payment 
period of  the GPG.

b) Credit risk 
 Credit risk was managed on a departmental 

basis. GIFA is not exposed to credit risks, as it is 
not allowed to borrow as per the PFMA. 

 The interest bearing rental deposit is governed 
by the contractual agreement that all interests 
accrue at prime less 2% at the end of  each year. 
Interest accrued is added to the deposit and 
becomes payable at the date of  return of  the 
deposit. 

 Maximum exposure to credit risk 
 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 

reporting date is the carrying value of  each 
financial asset mentioned in the notes to follow.

 Receivables pledged as security 
 The GIFA does not hold any collateral as security. 

 Credit quality of financial assets neither past due 
nor impaired 

 The credit quality of  both non-current and 
current receivables is high.

 The receivable from the Department of  
E-Government, as well as the debt relating 
to the co-funding agreement with the City of  
Johannesburg are governed by contractual 
agreements and as per management’s 
assessment thereof, not at risk of  being 
defaulted.

 The deposit and interest capitalised were 
confirmed via written confirmation from the 
landlord and is governed by contractual 
agreement. 

 Receivables past due but not impaired 
 The ageing of  amounts past due but not 

impaired is as follows: 
 The deposit and capitalised interest becomes 

payable at the end of  the lease period, taking 
extensions into consideration. 

 Payment from the City of  Johannesburg was 
confirmed in writing and is expected to be paid 
in the 2016/17 financial year.

c) Liquidity risk 
 For the GIFA, prudent liquidity risk management 

implies maintaining sufficient cash to meet its 
commitments. The GIFA has the responsibility to limit 
spending and commitment of  funds to the approved 
budget/transfer payment.

Maturity analysis

Financial liability Due in  
less than 

 a year

Due in 
 2 to 5 
years Total

Trade payables  
(refer to note 12) 2 657 – 2 657
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4.  Cash and cash equivalents

2016 

R‘000 

Cash and cash equivalents 26 239

Project Preparation Facility (cash 94 446

120 685

 Cash and cash equivalents represent money held in the bank account of  the Gauteng Infrastructure Financing 
Agency (GIFA), as well as the balance of  petty cash held. Interest earned on the bank balance does not accrue to 
the GIFA but to the Revenue Fund of  the Gauteng Provincial Government.

 The Project Preparation Facility comprises a cash facility that is ring-fenced for the use of  performing feasibility 
studies for projects. Interest on the PPF balance does not accrue to the GIFA but to the Revenue Fund of  the 
Gauteng Provincial Government.

 During the nine months ended 31 March 2016, ten projects were submitted and approved for funding from the PPF, 
to the value of  R54 million. 

 Details of  the 31 March 2016 contracted commitments from PPF are as follows:

 Project

2016 

R‘000 

Feasibility study for Ekurhuleni Waste 5 696

Feasibility study for Tshwane Waste 8 059

 Feasibility costs paid from the Project Preparation Facility (PPF) are expensed in the Statement of  Financial 
Performance and added to the total cost of  the project. When such projects are funded successfully, the feasibility 
costs are recovered and paid back into the PPF. Such costs are disclosed under note 9, Contingent Assets.

5.  Current receivables from exchange transactions 

2016 

R‘000 

Co-funding receivable: City of  Johannesburg 4 000

Gauteng Department of  e-Government: Rental receivable 333

Deposits held 2 229

Interest receivable 1 426

Supplier Debt 333

8 321
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5.  Current receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

 Co-funding receivable: City of Johannesburg (R4,000)

 The co-funding agreement with the City of  Johannesburg runs over a 3 year period, with the following payments as 
per the contract:

2016 

R‘000 

Less than one year (due 30 June 2016) 4 000

More than one year, not greater than five years 2 000

6 000

 Gauteng Department of e-Government: Rental receivable (R333)

 The GIFA sub-lets the ground floor to the GPG DAV center in an arms-length transaction. 

 Deposits held (R2,229) and Interest receivable (R1,426)

 Deposits held represents the leasehold deposit paid, with interest receivable being interest accrued on the deposit 
held as per the contract stipulations. The lease deposit is held by the landlord as collateral for damages and 
amounts owed by the GIFA at the end of  the lease period (31 March 2016).

 Supplier debt (R333)

 Supplier debt relates to an overpayment to a supplier. This debt will be offset against future payments. 

6.  Non-current receivables from exchange transactions

2016 

R‘000 

Co-funding receivable: City of  Johannesburg 2 000

2 000

 Co-funding receivable represents a co-funding agreement between GIFA and City of  Johannesburg Metropolitan 
Municipality (COJ) for the feasibility studies done on a waste treatment project. The COJ will pay the debt to GIFA 
in three annual installments of  R2m each. The first payment was due 30 June 2015, but remained unpaid due to 
vendor registration processes at COJ being delayed.

7.  Intangible assets

 No intangible assets were pledged as security.

2016

R’000

Cost
Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying  
value

Accounting and general software 217 134 83

Monitoring and evaluation system 2 613 1 216 1 397

2 830 1 350 1 480
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7.  Intangible assets (continued)

 The carrying amounts of  intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

2016
R’000

Carrying value 
transferred in Additions

Amortisation 
for the year

Carrying value 
at the end of 

the year

Accounting and general software 93 7 17 83

Monitoring and evaluation system 1 573 317 493 1 397

1 666 324 510 1 480

8.  Property, plant and equipment

 All assets of  the GIFA are non-cash generating assets.

 Remaining useful lives of  assets were estimated based on the general condition of  the assets, as well as the 
technical specifications and usability thereof.

 No property, plant or equipment is pledged as security.

2016
R’000

Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying  
value

Computer equipment 756 274 482

Office equipment 1 019 792 227

Office furniture 2 722 1 935 787

Audio visual equipment 118 104 14

Small assets 12 9 3

Leasehold improvements 3 298 3 297 1

Finance lease assets 42 3 39

7 967 6 414 1 553

 The carrying amounts of  property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

2016
R’000

Carrying 
value 

transferred 
in Corrections Additions Write-Offs

Depreciation 
for the year

Carrying 
value at 

the end of 
the year

+ + + – – +

Computer equipment 343 9 243 25 88 482

Office equipment 315 8 62 35 123 227

Office furniture 947 9 34 – 203 787

Audio visual equipment 25 – – – 11 14

Small assets 5 – – – 2 3

Leasehold improvements 325 – – – 324 1

Finance lease assets – – 42 – 3 39

1 960 26 381 60 754 1 553
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9. Contingent assets

 Feasibility studies paid from the Project Preparation Facility are added to the funding requirements of  the project 
and will be refunded to the GIFA upon successful financing. 

 An inflow of  economic benefits to the value of  the expensed costs is thus probable and recognised as contingent 
assets.

 Contingent assets as at 31 March 2016:

Project

Committed  
feasibility cost

R’000

Expenditure 
to date (recognised 

as contingent 
assets):

R’000

Ekurhuleni Waste to Energy feasibility 5 696 168

Tshwane Waste to Energy feasibility 8 059 386

Contingent Assets 13 755 554

10.  Deferred Income

 Movement during the year:

2016 

R‘000 

Transferred at the beginning of  the year 75 000

Deferred Income for the year 20 000

Income recognition during the year (554)

94 446

 Money received or transferred to the Project Preparation Facility (PPF) is recognised as deferred income. A deferred 
income liability is recognised to the extent that payments from the PPF have not been made.

 As the GIFA incurs expenditure for feasibility studies funded through the PPF, it reduces the carrying amount of  
the liability and recognises an amount of  revenue equal to that reduction. During the 9 month period, an amount of   
R554 K was recognised as income, resulting in a movement of  the balance of  deferred income. 
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11.  Categories of financial instruments:

2016 

R‘000 

A. Financial assets at amortised cost

Current receivables (refer to note 5) 8 321

Non-current receivables (refer to note 6) 2 000

Cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 4) 120 685

131 006

B. Financial liabilities

Trade payables (refer to note 12) 2 657

 Trade payables shown as financial liabilities represent amounts not paid at year-end and thus accrued for.

12.  Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

2016 

R‘000 

Accruals 898

GGDA: JMP-IDZ 1 700

Gauteng Provincial Treasury 59

2 657

 Accruals are non-interest bearing and normally settled on 30 day terms.

 GGDA relates to a co-funding agreement on the JMP Project. 

 Gauteng Provincial Treasury – payables relate to salaries paid on behalf  of  GIFA and then refunded to GPT (R15,8 
million) and to the unrealised portion of  revenue of  the conditional grant paid into the Project Preparation Facility.

13.  Leave and Service bonus pay provision

2016 

R‘000 

Leave pay provision 145

Leave pay accrual 573

Service bonus provision 119

Performance bonus provision 272

1 109

 The short-term portions of  leave pay commitments are shown as an accrual, where provisions represent the long-
term (longer than 12 months) liability to the GIFA. 
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14.  Contractual commitments

 The entity has service delivery contracts that are cancellable on notice periods as stipulated in the contracts. These 
liabilities will be paid from the operating budget for the next year. 

 The cost contracted but not yet incurred at statement of  financial position date are as follows:

2016 

R‘000 

Contracted 7 689

 Details of  the 31 March 2016 contracted commitments are as follows:

Expense Item Service Provider

2016 

R‘000 

Feasibility Study COJ Waste Treatment Aurecon South Africa 481

Feasibility Study Vaal Logistic Hub Safiri 1 693

Security Services ADT 11

Refreshments Pureau 2

Advisory Services for Trigen Pamoja 4 339

Consumables Thuthukani 2

Design and layout of  business cards Grey Dot 3

Background check and personal checks Brand ID 5

Maintenance Air Technology 65

Feasibility Study Ekurhuleni Waste Characterisation Aurecon South Africa 938

Stationery Eclipse Stationers 3

Groceries Kondelelane Distributors 17

Office Furniture Nads 11

Website Data Upload Hotspot Marketing 25

Legal services Ledwaba Mazwai 37

Skills Assessments Mogoma Research 19

Legal services Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr 17

Cleaning services Meropa 21

7 689

 Lease commitment: building

 The entity leases property under a non-cancellable contract. Minimum lease payments on non-cancellable operating 
leases are as follows:

2016 

R‘000 

Less than one year 2 918
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15.  Finance lease 

Future Minimum 
lease payments 

R’000

Future  
Finance 
Charges

R’000

Present 
value of future 

minimum lease 
payments

R’000

Amounts payable under finance leases

Within one year 21 (3) 18

Within two to five years 23 (1) 22

Total future minimum lease payments 44 (4) 40

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (current 
portion)

(21) 3 (18)

Non-current future minimum lease payments 23 (1) 22

 The entity leases some of  its equipment under finance leases. The lease term is for 27 months and Interest rate 
is 10.25%. Interest rate is fixed and no contingent rent is payable. Rentals can continue after the lease term has 
expired. No restrictions are imposed by lease arrangements.

16.  Transfer payments

 A transfer payment is received annually from Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT), the controlling department of  
GIFA. This transfer payment is used to cover the operating costs of  the GIFA. The transfer payment for the 9 month 
period amounts to R25 million.

 A second transfer payment of  R20 million was received from Gauteng Treasury to contribute to the Project Preparation 
Facility (PPF). 

17.  Other income

2016 

R‘000 

Interest received on bank balance and deposits 3 510

Rental sub-lease income 1 316

Revenue transferred from deferred income 554

Other income 471

5 851

18. Staff costs

2016 

R‘000 

Salaries 14 499

Employer contribution: medical 154

Employer contribution: pension 1 251

Leave Pay 343

Service and performance bonus provisions 320

16 567
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19.  Depreciation and amortisation

2016 

R‘000 

Depreciation: Property, plant and equipment 753

Depreciation of  computer equipment 88

Depreciation of  office equipment 122

Depreciation of  office furniture 203

Depreciation of  audio visual equipment 11

Depreciation of  small assets 2

Depreciation of  leasehold improvements 324

Depreciation of  finance lease asset 3

Amortisation: Intangible assets 510

Total 1 263

20.  Other expenditure

2016 

R‘000 

Other expenditure includes the following items:

Advertising 459

Audit fees 436

Bank charges 2

Consumables 7

Interest 1

Printing & Stationery 333

Rental of  buildings 3 760

Membership fees 23

Security Costs 13

Telephone Costs 411

Training 161

Rent Operational Costs 659

Parking 1

Legal expenses 23

Maintenance and Repairs 66

System Support and Maintenance 516

Venues and Facilities 535

Travel and Accommodation 87

Other 220

Total 7 713
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21.  Taxation 

  No provision for taxation has been made in the financial statements, as the GIFA is not a tax paying entity. (The entity, 
as part of  the Department of  Treasury, is exempt, as per S10 of  the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of  1962)).

22.  Net cash flows from operations activities

2016 

R‘000 

Surplus for the year 10 632

Non-cash movements 1 432

Depreciation and amortisation 1 263

Deferred Income (554)

Service Bonus and leave provisions 663

Loss on sale of  assets 60

12 064

Changes in working capital: 22 646

(Increase)/decrease in current and non-current receivables 24 596

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (1 990)

Increase/(decrease) in finance lease 40

Net cash flows from operating activities 34 710

 The Gauteng Funding Agency (GFA) was disestablished on 30 June 2015 and the Gauteng Infrastructure Financing 
Agency (GIFA) was established on 1 July 2015. 

 Annual Financial Statements for GFA were done and audited as at 30 June 2015. With the disestablishment, all 
assets, liabilities and reserves of  the GFA were transferred to the GIFA in line with guidelines for “Transfer of  
functions between entities under common control”. (Refer to note 25)

 Although the GIFA does not have comparative figures for the previous financial year, the opening balances transferred 
from GFA have to be taken into account when performing the cash flow statement and calculations. Changes in 
working capital thus reflects the changes from opening balances to year-end balances.

23.  Related parties and related party transactions

A. The GIFA is a Government Component of  Gauteng Provincial Treasury; therefore Gauteng Provincial Treasury 
is considered a related party. The following transactions took place between GPT and the GIFA:

2016 

R‘000 

Transfer payment 25 000

PPF Capitalisation 20 000

45 000

 The salaries of  the GIFA is run on the system of  the GPT and paid by GPT every month. GIFA then refunds the 
amounts paid on behalf  of  GIFA to GPT.

B. As part of  Gauteng Provincial Government, the Gauteng Department of  e-Government is considered a related 
party. 

 GFA sub-lets the ground floor of  82 Grayston Drive, Sandton to the DAV Centre, which forms part of  Gauteng 
Department of  E-Government. (Refer to note 5 and 17). This is an arms-length transaction.
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C. The City of  Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality (COJ) is a debtor of  the GFA through a co-funding 
agreement and thus a related party. A co-funding agreement between GFA and COJ was entered into for the 
feasibility studies done on a waste treatment project. 

D. The GIFA is conducting feasibility studies on behalf  of  Gauteng Provincial and Local government. These 
Departments and Municipalities/Regional Councils are, by nature of  the transactions, related parties.

 Identified related parties for 2015/2016 for feasibility work performed are:
•	Gauteng	Department	of 	Infrastructure	Development
•	Gauteng	Department	of 	Economic	Development
•	Gauteng	Department	of 	Education
•	 City	of 	Johannesburg	Metropolitan	Municipality
•	West	Rand	District	Municipality
•	 Tshwane	Metropolitan	Municipality
•	 Ekurhuleni	Metropolitan	Municipality
•	Mogale	City	Municipality

E. The compensation paid for management is shown below:

 Key management emoluments:

2016 

R‘000 

CEO of GIFA 1 489

Basic salary 805

Non pensionable allowance 552

Employee contribution: medical aid 14

Employee contribution: pension 105

Subsistence allowance 13

Chief Financial Officer 967

Basic salary 677

Non pensionable allowance 202

Pension 88

Head: Project Development 1 105

Basic salary 773

Non pensionable allowance 231

Employee contribution: pension 101

Head: Structured Finance 1 216

Basic salary 851 

Non pensionable allowance 254

Employee contribution: pension 111

Manager - Strategy & Monitoring 845

Basic salary 507

Non pensionable allowance 272

Incidental costs –

Employee contribution: pension 66

Performance bonus –
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24.  Contingencies

 There are no contingencies to report.

25.  Transfer under common control

 The GIFA financial statement was prepared with reference to GRAP 105 (transfer of  functions between entities 
under common control) and the transfer of  all assets, liabilities, funds and surpluses done as at 30 June 2015. The 
GFA was disestablished at 30 June 2015 as per Treasury Regulation 19.9 (closure of  a trading entity)

 A transitional arrangement was approved by the Head of  Department of  Gauteng Treasury for all GIFA’s procurement, 
contracts and payments to be construed through the GFA until 30 June 2015. All activities of  GIFA that was paid for 
by GFA have been recorded as part of  the GFA financial statements. 

 The effect of  the transfer is as follows:

Note

R‘000 
2016

Transferred 
balances out of 

GFA

R‘000 
2016 

Transferred 
balances into 

GIFA 

Cash and cash equivalents 4 11 680 11 680

Project Preparation Facility 4 75 000 75 000

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 5 32 916 32 916

Receivables from exchange transactions 6 2 000 2 000

Intangible assets 7 1 666 1 666

Property, plant and equipment 8 1 959 1 959

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 12 (4 647) (4 647)

Leave pay accrual 13 (241) (241)

Service Bonus Provision 13 (71) (71)

Leave pay provision 13 (133) (133)

Effect of transfer to Accumulated surplus 120 129 120 129

26. Subsequent events

 There are no subsequent events to report.
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